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Independent auditor's report

To the Shareholders of EFG Eurcbank Ergaslas S A

Raport on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of EFG Eurobank Ergasias (the “Bank”) and ts subsidianes (the “"Group®) set out on pages 4 to 47 which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as of 34 December 2010 and the consolidated income statement, statement of comprehensive incoma, statement of changes in equity and cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statemonts

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Intematonal Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Unton, and for such internal control as management detenmines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financal statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's Responsibillty

Qur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audn to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the
auditors judgment including the assessment of the risks of matenal misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those nsk assessments,
the auditor considers internal cantrol relevant to the entty's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are approphate In
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained I1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit cpinion
Opinion

In our cpinton, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial positon of the Group as of December 31, 2010, and s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intemational Finaneial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union

Refarenceo on Other Legal Matters
a) Included in the Board of Directors’ Report 13 the corporate governance statement that contains the information that 1s required by paragraph 3d of artcle 43a of Codified Law
219041520

b) We venfied the conformity and consistency of the information given tn the Board of Directors' report with the accompanying financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of articles 43a, 108 and 37 of Codffied Law 2190/1920

Athens, 22 March 2011
The Certified Auditor-Accountant

Marios Psaltis
SOEL Reg No 38081

PRCEWAERHOUSE(QOPERS

PrecewaterhouseCcopers
268 Kifissias Avenue

15 232 Halandn

SOEL Reg No 113
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EFG EUROBANK ERGASIAS § A

Consolidated Income Statement

@ Eurobank EFG

Interest ncome
Interest expense
Net interest income

Banking fee and commussion income
Banking fee and commusston expense

Net banking fee and commission income
Met ingurance income

Income from non banking services

Dradend income

Net trading income

Gaing less tosses from investment secunlies
Other cperating income

Cperating income

Operating expenses

Profit from operations before impairment losses on
loans and advances

Impairment losses on foans and advances
Share of results of associates

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Net profit for the year

Net profit for the year attnbutable to non controlling interest
Net proflt for the year attributable to shareholders®

* Comparable profit for the year excluding
- Speciai tax contnbution

Net profit for the year excluding special tax contribution

Earnings por share

-Basic and diluted earnings/({losses) per share
-Basic and diluted earrings/{losses) per share excluding
preferred secunties' gains/(losses)

Earnings per share excluding special tax contribution
-Basic and diluted eamings/(losses) per share

-Basic and diluted eamings/{losses) per share excluding
preferred secuntes' pains/{losses)

Notes an pages & to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Page 4

20

1

13

13

13

13

545 549
(142} (131)
404 418

a7 48

33 31

7 8

79 97
87 74
23 23
266 282
2,924 3,041
(1,426} {1471}
1,498 1570
{1,362) (1.177)
{0} 5
128 398
(52) (82)
a4 316

16 1

68 305

45 57
113 362
{0 16) 074
{0 15) 0 41
{0 06) 085
{0 06) 051
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EFG EUROBANK ERGASIAS 5 A

Consolldated Balance Sheat

@ Eurobank EFG

ASSETS

Cash and balances with centra! banks
Loans and advances to banks
Financial iInstruments at tair value through profit or loss
Dervative financial instruments

Loans and advances to customers
Investment secunties

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other banks

Repurchase agreements with banks
Denvative financial nstruments

Due to customers

Debt 13sued and other borrowed funds
Cther habilities

Total tiabllitiea

EQUITY

Ordinary share capital

Share premium

Other reserves

Ordinary shareholders® equity
Preferance shares

Preferred securities

Non contrelling nterest

Total

Total equity and liabilities

Notes on pages 9 to 47 form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements

Page §

eCOMBe AT D |
Eg2009

|II|0%1

14 3079
16 4784
17 868
18 1224
19 55 837
2 15243
23 1252
24 710
25 1,643 1272
87,158 84,269

26 1,144 2,258
27 26,480 17,188
18 2,681 2,274
28 44,435 45,808
20 5,389 7 667
30 1,965 1760
81,004 77,955

32 1,478 1,480
2 1,440 1,441
1,113 1,377

4,031 4,298

) 960 950
34 791 791
322 275

6,094 6314

87,188 84 269
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EFG EUROBANK ERGASIAS S A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Cash flow hedges

- net changes in farr value, net of tax
- transfer to net profit, net of tax

Available for sale securities
- net changes in fair value, net of tax
- transfer to net profit, net of tax

- net changes in fair vatue net of tax
- associated undertakings
- transfer to net profit net of tax

Foreign currency translation
- net changes in farr value, net of tax
- transfer to net profit, net of tax

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to

Shareholders

Non controlling interest

w5 Lp G e n R Year ended 31 Décem

;@:Nu&gg-'w"201 Dd,ﬁ%‘ §‘i : e 2 (:ﬁﬁ;@:.‘g'w{ i

84 316
(61) (14)
{2) (53) (1) (25)
{(191) 98
41 {150) (48) 50
{3) 4
14 4 ()] 4
{28) (55)
0 {28) - (55)
227 (26)
(167) 280
14 10
) 290

Notes on pages 8 fo 47 form an ntegral part of these consohdatad financral statemonts

Page &
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EFG EUROBANK ERGASIAS 5 A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year anded 31 December 2010

Balance at 1 January 2009

Other comprahensive incoma for the year

Profit for tha year
Total comprehensive incomae for the year ended
31 December 2009

Distribution of Iree shares 1o staf!f
Iasus of preference shares, net of expenses

Non coniraling interest's share in subsidiaries' capital increase
Acqulsitions/changes in parucipabing interests in subsidiary and
associated undertakings

Purchase/sale of preferred securitias
|ssus of preferred securities
Freferred secudties’ dividend paid

Diwvidends paid in the form of free shares
Dividends distnbuted by subsidiaries attnbutable to non
controling Interast

Share-based payment

« Value of employes services
Purchase of treasury shares

Sale of treasury shares net of tax
Transfers between reserves

Balance st 31 December 2009

Balance at 1 January 2010

Other comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year
Tolal comprehensive Income for the year ended
31 December 2010

Acquisitions/changes In paricipating interests in subsidiary and
associated undertalings
Purchase/sate of preferred secunties

Preference shares' and preferred secunties’ dividend paid
Dividends distributed by subsidianes attributable te non
controling interest

Share-based payment
- Value of employes services
Purchase of treasury sh tansing from acquisihons

Sale of reasury sheres, net of tax and related expenses
Transfers between reserves

Balance at 31 December 2010

[ . . Aftnbutable ta ordinary shareholdars oft

Ordwnary#.

TR S

B,

Rl
e,
He |£I A3 ﬁ

he Barnk: 2t 7 b SRR

e Baais e
Rareis g Sha Prafarance hEaP
TEAnal Arermii ngs &t olal 4 8 16} :

Ttilion -~ € million 1157, %on o € mllllon milllion i emillion § THongegemillion|
1378 1,100 481 628 3587 - 705 M 4623
- - (25) . (25} - - (1 {26)

- - - 305 305 - - i1 316

. - {25) 305 280 - . 10 290

2 5 0 . 7 - . . 7

- {10 - . (10} 950 - - 940

. - - . - . - ) 2

. - - [} (3 - - (54) (57

. - N 173 173 - (308} . (135)

- - - - - 354 - 394

. . . @n 37 . . - a7

28 B - ) (&) - - - )

- . - . . . - {14) (14)

- - 13 - 13 - - - 13
[O)] ()} - - [} - - - )]

73 348 - (127) 285 - - - 295

- - 209 (200) - - - . -

102 341 222 (234) 431 850 86 (66) 1,401
1,480 1441 678 £99 4,288 850 791 275 6314
1,480 1,441 678 €99 4,298 950 791 5 6,314
- - (225) - (225) - - (2) {227)

- - - 88 68 - - 16 84
. . (225) 68 (157} - . 14 {143)

- . - © 0 - - 48 4

- - - . - . 0 - )
. - - (108) {108) - . - (108)
- - . - . - . (15) (15

- - 4 - 4 - - - 4
3 m - - 4 - - - )
1 0 - (3 2 - - - @)
- - 187 {187) - - - - -
{2} m 191 (298) {119) . 0 33 a7
1,478 1,440 644 489 4,031 950 791 322 6,094
Note 32 Note 32 Note 38 Note 33 Note 34

Notes on pages § to 47 form an Intagral part of these consolidated financial sfatements

Page 7
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EFG EUROBANK ERGASIAS § A

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2010

@ Eurobank EFG

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received and net trading receipts
Interest pad

Fees and commissions received

Fees and commssions paid

Other income receved

Cash payments o employees and suppliers
Income taxes pad

Cash flows from operating profits before changes in operating assets and liabilites

Changes in operating assats and liabilities
Net (increase)/decrease in cash and balances with central banks

Net (increaseYdecrease in financtal instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advancas to banks

Net (increase)decrease in loans and advances to customers
Net (increase)/decrease in denvative financial Instruments
Net {increase)decrease in other assets

Net increase/{decrease) in due to other banks and repurchase agreaments

Net increase/(decrease) in due to customers
Net increase/(decrease) in ¢ther rabilibes
Net cash from/{used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and eguipment and intangble assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Purchases of investment secunties
Proceeds from sale/redemption of investment secuntes

Acquisiton of subsidiary undertakings net of cash acquired and associated undertakings
Diwvidends from investment secuntes and associated undertakings

Net cash from/{used in) investing activitias

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from debt issued and other borrowed funds
Repayments of debt 1ssued and other borrowed funds
Purchase of preferred secunbes

Proceeds from salefissue of preferred secunties
Preference shares' and preferred securties’ dvidend paid
Expenses for 1ssue of preference and bonus shares
Purchase of treasury shares

Procesds from sale of treasury shares net of expenses
Net contributions by non controlling interest

Net cash from/{used in} financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase/{decrease) In cash and cash equivatents

Cash and cash equrvalents at beginning of year
Gash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes on pages 9 fo 47 form an infegral part of these consohdated financial statements

Page 8

. ) [T VYear'ended 31 Dacember I |
Lt ] e 2010 HEoaE 2 2008
Note 77 |- mRESmillian b iy ‘{o‘g)
4,083 5052
{2,198) (2,870)
699 736
{113) {113)
4 4
(1,290) {1239)
(126) (46)
1,028 1,524
{12) {196)
92 78
(817) 238
{1,19%) (670}
18) (778}
(174} (250}
7.183 682
(2,532) 986
{48} 162
3,513 1,778
{159) (188)
17 38
{6.724) (9 349)
5,696 7 180
) (54)
9 g
(1.162) (2.364)
394 7,133
{2,767) (7 961)
24 (94 (179)
34 94 437
(108) (37)
- (12)
2) (2
1) 250
{17) {13)
{2,491} (384)
2 {28)
{138) (998}
15 4,182 5180
15 4,044 4 182
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EFG EUROCBANK ERGASIAS § A

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements @ Eurobank EFG

1 Genegral information

EFG Eurcbank Ergasias S A (the "Bank") and it3 subsidianes (the "Group”) are active in retai, corporate and private banking asset management, insurance, treasury,
capital markets and other services The Bank 13 incorporated in Greece and its shares are listed on the Athens Stock Exchange The Group operates mainly in Greece and
in Central, Eastern and Southeastem Europe (New Europe)

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2011

2 Principal accounting policies

The pnncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the censohdated financal statements are set out below

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 1ssued by the IASB, as
adopted by the European Union and in particular with those IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations 1ssued and effective or issued and early adopted as at the tme of
preparing these statements

The policies set out below have been consistently apphed to the years 2009 and 2010 Where necessary comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes
in presentation i the current year

{a) Amended and new standards and interpretations effective m 2010

- 1AS 27, Revised-Consclidated and Separate Financial Statements

- 1AS 39 Amendment-Eligible Hedged ltems

- IFRS 2, Amendment-Group Cash settied Share based payment fransactions

- IFRS 3, Revised-Business Combinations

- IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

- IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

-{FRIC 17, Distnbutions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

- Amendments to vanous Standards that form part of IASB's 2009 Annual Improvement Project

(b) Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

- IAS 12, Amendment-Deferred tax Recovery of Underlying Assets (effective 1 January 2012 not yet endorsed by EU)
-IAS 24 Amendment-Related Party Disclosures (effective 1 January 2011)

- 1AS 32 Amendment-Classification of Rights Issues {effective 1 January 2011)

-IFRS 7 Amendment-Disclosures, Transfers of Financial Assets (effective 1 January 2012 not yet endorsed by EU)
-IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2013, not yet endorsed by EU)

-IFRIC 14, Amendment-Prepayments of a Mintmum Funding Requirement (effective 1 January 2011}

-IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabitises (effective 1 January 2011)

- Amendments to vanious Standards that form part of IASB's 2010 Annual Improvement Project (effective 1 January 2011)

IFRS 3 (revised in 2008} introduces changes In the accounting for business combinatons prospectively from 1 January 2010 (accounting policy (b}(1)) |FRS 9 13 part of
iASB's project to replace 1AS 39 Financial Instruments which has not been finalised yet and as a result, it 1s not practicable to quantify ts impact The appheation of the
other above mentioned standards and interpretations i1s not expected to have a matenal impact on the Group's financial statements in the penod of the mial application

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation of avalable-for-sale financial assets and of financial
assets and financial habilies (including denvative instruments) at fair-value-through-profit-or-loss

The preparation of financial statements n conformity with IFR S requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilites and
disclosura of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting penad Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions actual results ulimately may differ from those estmates

The Group's presentation currency 13 the Euro (€} being the functional currency of the parent Company Except as mdicated financial information presented i euro has
been rounded to the nearest million

(b) Consolidation
(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiary undertakings are entties over which the Group, directly or indirectly, has the power to exercise control over therr inancial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts The existence and effect of potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable or converbble are
considered when assessing whether the Group contrgls ancther antity Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are
no longer consolidated from the date that control ceases Total comprehensive income s attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controfling interests even f
this results in the non-cantrolling Interests having a deficit balance

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisitien of subsidiaries by the Group The consideration transferred for an acquisition 13 measured at the
farr value of the assets given equity instruments 1ssued or exchanged and hablites undertaken at the date of acquisition, including the fair value of assets or habiites
resuling from a contingent consideration arrangement Acquisition related costs are expensed as incumed |dentfiable assets acquired and liabilties and contingent
habilites assumed in a business combination are measured inibally at their fair values at the acquisiion date irespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest Any
previously held interest in the acquiree 13 remeasured to fair value at the acquisihon date with any gain or 1oss recogrised in the income statement The Group recognises
on an acquision-by-acquisiion basis any non-controlling interest in the acquirea either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets

The excess of the consideration transferred the ameunt of any non-contreling interest in the acquiree and the acquisiton-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the wWentfiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired 1s recorded as goodwill If this 1s less than the fair value of the net assets of the
acqurees, the difference 1s recognised directly in the income stalement Financial assets or financial habihies resulting from contingent consideration arrangements are
measured at farr value, with changes in farr value included |n the income statement

Intercompany transacbons balances and intragroup gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated, infragroup Iosses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the asset transfered

Commitments to purchase non controlling nterests through dervative financial instruments with the non-controlling interest's as part of a business combination are
accounted for as a financial iaklity with no non-controlling interest recognised for reporting purposes The financial lability 18 measured at far value, using valuation
techniques based on best estmates avalable to management Any difference between the fair value of the financral hability upon mitial recogniion and the nominal non-
controlling interest's share of net assets i18 recognised as part of goodwill Subsequent revisions to the valuation of the denvatives ara recognised in the iIncoms statement,
except for business combinations with an acquisiion date up to 31 December 2009 where such changes adjust the carrying amount of goodwill

Page 9 31 December 2010 Consclidated Financial Statements




EFG EUROBANK ERGASIAS S A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements @ Eurobank EEG

{b)

(c}

{d)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Consolidation {continued)
() Subsidiaries {continued)

The Group sponsors the formation of special purpose entites, which may or may not be direcly owned subsidianes for the purpose of asset secuntisation {accounting
policy (x) below) The entties may acquire assets directly from the Bank These companies are bankruptcy-remote entities and are consolidated in the Group's Financial
Statements when the substance of the relatonship between the Group and the entity indicates that the entty is controlled by the Group

Where necessary accountng policies of subsidianes have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies of the Group
A listing of the Bank's subsidianes I1s set out in note 22
(i) Transactrons with non-controlling interests

Changes in the Group's ownership interest In subsidianes that do not result In a loss of control are recorded as equity fransactions and any difference between the
consideration and the share of the new net assets acquired s recorded directly In equity Gains or losses ansing from disposals of ownership interest that do not resulttn a
loss of control by the Group are also recorded directly in equity For dispesals of ownership interests that result in a loss of control, the Group recognises gains and josses
in the inceme statement When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the equity 18 remeasured 10 its fax value, with any changes in the carrying amount
recogmised in the income statement

(#) Assoclates

Investments in associated undertakings are accounted for by the equity method of accounting in the consolidatad financial stat its These are undertakings over which
the Group exercizes significant influence but which are not controlled

Equity accounting involves recognising in the income statement the Group's share of the associate's profit or ioss for the year The Group's interest in the associate 1s
camied on the balance sheet at an amount that reflects its share of the net assets of the associate and any geodwill identifiad on acquistion net of any accumulated
impairment losses If the Group s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses, unless it has \ncurred abhigations or made payments on behalf of the associate When the Group obtains or ceases to have significant influence any previously held
or relained nterest in the entity 1s remeasured to its fair value with any change in the carrying amount recognised in the income statement VWhere necessary the
accounting polictes used by the associates have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies of the Group

A listing of the Group's associated undertakings, which are accounted for using the equity method, 1s set out in note 25
(fv) Joint ventures

The Group's interest i jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the equity method of accountmg in the consolidated financial statements and are treated as
associates Where necessary the accounting policies used by the joint vertures have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies of the Group

A listing of the Group s joint ventures 1s set out in note 25

Foralgn currencies
(1) Translation of foreign subsidiaries

In the consolidated financtal statements, the assets and labilites of foreign subsidianes are translated into the Group's presentation currency using the exchange rate
ruling at the Batance Sheet date Income and expenses are transiated at the average rates of exchange for the reporting penod

Exchange differences ansing from the retranslation of the net investment in foreign subsidianes are taken to “Cther comprehensive income” untl disposal of the net
Investmants and then reteased to the income statement.

(i) Transactions in forelgn currency

Foreign currency fransactions are transtated inte the functional currency using the exchange rates prevaiing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the setffament of such fransactions are recogrused In the tncome statement

Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies have been translated into the functional currency at the market rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date and exchange differences are accounted for n the Income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualfying cash flow hedges and qualfying net
investment hedge

Non-monetary assets and habilites have been transiated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at intial recogmition, except for non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value which have been translated using the rate of exchange at the date the farr value was determined The
axchange differences relating to these items are treated as part of the change in fair value and they are recegnised in the income statement or recorded directly in equity
depending on the classification of the non-monetary 1tem

Derivative financlal instruments and hedging

Denvative financial instruments, including foreign exchange contracts forward currency agreements and interest rate options {both wnitten and purchased} currency and
interest rate swaps, and other denvative financtal Instruments are mitially recognised in the balance sheet at fair value on the date on which a denvative contract is entered
inte and subsequently are re-measured at their farr value Fair values are obtained from guoted market prices, including recent market transactions, discounted cash flow
models and options pricing models, as appropnate All denvatives are camed as assets when farr value 1s positve and as labilities when fair value 1s negative

The best evidence of the far value of a denvative at tinital recognition 18 the transaction pnee (1 e , the fair value of the consideration given or recerved) unless the fair value
of that instrument 1s evidenced by companson with other cbservable current market transactions in the same instrument { & , without modification or repackaging) or based
on a valuahon technique whase vanables include only data from observable markets

Certain denvatves embedded in other financial instruments, are treated as separate denvatives when their nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of the
host contract and the host contract s not carned at fair value through profit or ioss These embedded denvatives are measured at far value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement

The method of racognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the denvative 13 designated and qualdies as & hedging instrument, and if so the nature
of the item being hedged The Group designates certan denvatives as (1) hedges of the exposure to changes in fair value of recognised assets or habilites or
unrecognsed firm commitments {farr value hedge), (2) hedges of the exposure to vanability in cash flows of recognised assats or habidives or highly probable forecasted
transactions (cash flow hedge), or, (3) hedges of the expasure to vanability n the value of a net investment in a foreign operaton associated with the translation of the
investment's camying amount in the Group’s functional currency Hedge accounting 1 used for denvatives designated in this way, provided certain critera are met

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction, the relatonship between hadging instruments and hedged tems, as well as its nsk management objective and
strategy for undertaking varous hedge transactions The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge incepion and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
denvatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effectrve in offsething changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items
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Principal accounting policles {continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)
(1} Falr value hedge

Changes in the farr value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with any changes i the far
value of the hedged asset or liability that are attnbutable to the hedged risk

If the hedge no tonger meets the cntena for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method 13 used 15
amortised to profit or [oss over the penod to maturity The adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method 13 not used remains
until the disposal of the equity security

(ii) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualfy as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recogrised Immediately in the incormne statement

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement in the penads in which the hedged itam will affect profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale
that 1s hedged takes place)

When a hedging mstrument expires or Is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the cntena far hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in eguity at that time
remains In aquity and 1s recogrused when the forecast transaction 1s ultimately recogrused in the income statement.

When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity 1s iImmediately transferred to the income statement

(1ii) Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations, including hedges of monetary ttems that form part of the net investments in the foreign operations, are accounted for
similarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating 1o the effective portion of the hedge 1 recognised in equity, the gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the ;ncome statement Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included In the income statement whan the foreign
operation 1s disposed of as part of the gain or loss on the disposal

{iv} Derivatives that do not quallfy for hedge accounting

Certaun denvative instruments do not qualfy for hedge accounting Changes in the fair value of any denvative instrument that does not qualfy for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement

The: far values of derivative instruments held for trading and hedging purposes are disclosed in note 18

Offsetting financlal instruments

Financial agsets and habilities are offset and the net amount 1s presented in the balance sheet when there Is a legally enforceable nght to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intentton to settle on a net basss, or realise the asset and settle the Lability simultaneously

Income statement

(i} interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognised In the income statement for alt nterest bearing instruments on an accruals basis, using the effective interest rate method
The effective interest rate 13 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
apprapnate a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial iabiity When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group sstmates cash
flows considenng all contractual terms of the financial Instrument but does not consider future credit losses The calculation includes all fees and points paid or receved
betwean parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transacton costs, and all other premiums or discounts

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been wniten down as a result of an impairment loss interest ncome 1s recognised using the rate of inferest
usad to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measunng the impaiment loss

(i) Fees and commissions

Fees and commussions are generally recognised on an accruals basis Commissions and fees relating to foreign exchange transactions imports-exparts, remittances bank
charges and brokerage activties are recognised on the completion of the underdying transaction

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Cost includes expenditure that is directly atinbutable
to the acquisition of the asset Subsequent expenditure is recogmised In the asset's carying amount only when it 18 probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably All other repair and maintenance costs are recogrised in income statement as expenses as occurred

Depreciation 18 calculated using the straight-ine method to write down the cost of property, plant and equipment to ther residual values over thewr estmated useful Iife as
follows

- Land No depreciation

- Freehold bulldings 40-5{ years

- Leasehcld improvements over the leasa term or the useful hfe of the asset f shorter

- Computer hardware and software 4-10 ysars

- Other furniture and equipment 4-20 years

- Mator vehicles 5-7 years

Property plant and equipment are penodically reviewed for impairment with any impairment charge being recognised immediately in the income statement

Property held for rental yields and/or capital appreciabion that 1s not occupied by the companies of the Group 15 classified as investment property investment property is
camed at cost less accumulated depreciaton and accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

For business combinations completed from 1 January 2010, goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the far value of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the net entfiable assets of the acquired
undertaking at the date of acquisition Goodwill on acquisibons of subsidianes 18 included in ‘intangible assets' Goodwill on acquisitions of associates I1s included n
‘iInvestments in associates’
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Principal accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)
{1} Goodwill fcontinued)

Goodwill 1s measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses For the purpose of tmpairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to cash generating units or groups of cash
generating units The allocation 1s made to those cash generating units or groups of cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which goodwill arose The carrying amount of goodwill 1s re-assessed annually as well as whenever a trigger event has been cbserved for impairment Gams and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the camying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

(H) Computer software

Costs associated with the maintenance of existing computer software programmes are expensed as mcurred Development costs ated with the production of
dentfiable and uniqua products controlled by the Group that will probatly generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible
assets and are amortised using the straight-ine method over 4 years, except for core systems whose useful Ife may extend up to 10 years

(iii) Gther intangible assets

Other intangible assets are assets that are separable or anse from contractuat or other legal rights and are amorbised over their estimated useful lives These include
intangible assets acquired 1N business combinations

Financial Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following IAS 39 categones financial assets at fair-value-through-profit-or-loss, loans and recervables, held-to-matunty
investments and available-for-sale financial assets Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at mnitat recognition

(i} Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categones financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through profit or loss upon Inthial recogniton A financial asset is
classfied as held for trading f acquired principally for the purpose of seling or repurchasing in the short term or of it 1s pant of a portfolio of identfied financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there I1s evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking Denvatives are also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated and effective as hedging instruments

The Group designates certain financial assets upon inital recognition as at fair-value-through-profit-or-loss when any of the lollowing apply

a) it elrninates or significanty reduces measurement or recognition Inconsistencies, or
b) financial assets share the same nisks with financial [iabilites and those nsks are managed and avaluated on a fair value basis  or
©) structured products containing embedded denvatives that could significanty modsfy the cash flows of the host contract

(ll} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with ficed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market other than those that the Group
upon imitial recognition designates as at far-value-through-profit-or-loss and those that the Group upon intial recognition designates as available-for-sale Secunties
classified in this category are presented in Investment Securities under Debt Secuntes Lending portfolio

(if}} Held-to-maturity

Held-to-matunty investments are nan-denvabve financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunties that the Group's management has the positive
ntenton and ability to hold to maturty If the Group were to sell other than an nsigrificant amount of held-to-matunty assets, the entire category would be tainted and
reclassified as avalable-for-sale

{Iv} Avallable-for-sate

Available-for-sale Investments are those mtended to be held for an indefinite penod of time, which may be sold in response to needs for iquidity or changes in interest
rates exchange rates or equity pnces

Accounting treatment and calculation

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recogrised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset Loans onginated by the Group
are recogrused when cash 1s advanced to the borrowers Financial assets are intially recogrised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carned atfawr
value-through-profit-ordoss Financial assets are derecogrused when the nghts to receve cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantally all nsks and rewards of ownesship

Avallable-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at far-value-through-profit-or-loss are subsequently carmed at farr value Loans and receivables and held-to-matunty
investments are camed at amortised cost using the effective interest method Gains and josses ansing from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair-value-
through-profit-or-loss’ category are included in the income statement in the penod in which they anse Gasms and losses ansing from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised directly In equity untl the financial asset 1s derecognised or impaired at which tme the cumulative gain or loss previgusly
recogrised in equity I8 recognised In profit or loss However nterest calculated using the effective interest rate method 18 recognised in the income statement

Dividends on equity instruments are recogrised in the income staternent when the entity’s nght to receve payment 1s established

The fair values of quoted invesiments in active markets are based on current bid prices [f the market for a financial asset s not active (and for unlisted secunties) the
Group establishes far value by using valuation techniques These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to the current far value of another
instrument that 1s substantially the same discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets 1s impaired A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impawed and impaiment losses are incurred f there 1s objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the inital recogriton of the asset (a 'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assels that can be reliably estimated Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets 15 impaired includes cbservable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following loss events

a) signiicant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or pnncipal payments,

¢) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relaung to the borrower's financial difficulty a concession that the lender would not ctherwise
consider;

d) 1t becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,

e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties, or

f} observable data indicating that there 13 a measurable decraase in the estmated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recogrubion of
those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be dentfied with the indvidual financial assets in the group including
- adverse changes in the payment status of bomowers in the group or
- national or local economic conditions that carrefate with defaults on the assets in the group
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Principal accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
() Assets carried at amortisod cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists indnidually for financial assets that are indmdually significant, and indidualty or collectively for
financial assets that are not ;ndvidually sigrificant 1f the Group determines that no objective evidence of impanment exists for an indwdually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, 1t includes the asset in a group of financial assets with sunilar credit nsk charactenstics and collectively assesses them for impawment Assets
that are ndividually assessed for impawment and for which an imparrment loss 13 or continues to be recognised are not included In a collectve assessment of tmpairment

It thera 13 objective evidenca that an impawment loss on loans and receivables or held-to-matunty Investments carned at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss 18 measured as the dfference between the asset's carmying amount and the present value of estmatad future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the firancial asset’s onginal effective interest rate The camying amount of the asset s reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss 1s recognised in the income statement If a loan or held-to-matunty 1nvestment has a vanable interest rate, the discount rate for measunng any
impairment loss 1s the current effective interest rate determined under the contract As a practical expedient, the Group may measure jmparment on the basis of an
Instrument’s farr value using an observable market pnce

The caleulation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foredlosure less costs
for obtaining and selling the collateral whether or not foreclosure is probable

For the purpeses of a collective evaluation of impaiment financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit sk charactenstics {1e  on the basis of the Group s
grading process that considers asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type past-due status and other relevant factors} Those charactenstics are relevant to
the estmation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors' abiity to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the
assets being evaluated

Future cash flows m a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for imparment are estmated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit nsk characteristics similar to those in the group Histoncal loss experience 13 adjusted on the basis of current
observable data 1o refiect the effects of cument conditions that did not affect the pencd on which the histoncal loss expenence Is based and to remove the effects of
condrtions in the histonical penod that de not exist currently

Estmates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in related observable data from penod to period
{for example, changes n unemployment rates, property prices payment status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group and therr
magnitude) The methodology and assumptions used for esimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group 1o reduce any differences between loss
estmates and actual [oss expenence

When a loan Is uncollectible, it 1s wntten off against the related provision for loan impairment Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined Subsequent recovenas of amounts previously wntten off decrease the amount of the provision for loan
imparment n the Income statement

If, In & subsequent pencd, the amount of the mpaiment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively fo an event occurrng after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recogmisad impaimment I0ss s reversed by adjusting the allowance account The amount
of the revereal 1s recognised in the income statement

(i} Available-for-sale assels

In case of equity and debt investments classfted as avalable-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the farr value of the secunty below its cost 18 considered in
determining whether the assets are impaired If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the curmrent fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — 1s removed from equity and
recogmsed in the income statement. Impairnent losses recognised in the income statement on equity iInvestments are not reversed through the income statement If, in a
subsequent penod the fair value of a debt Instrument classified as avallable-for-sale mereases and the increase can be abjectively related to an event occurnng after the
impairment loss was recognised In profit or loss, the impairment loss s reversed through the incoma staternent

Sate and repurchase agreements and securities lending

(i) Sale and repurchase agreements

Secunties sold subject to repurchase agreements ( repos') continue to be recorded in the Group's Balance Sheet while the counterparty liability 18 included in amounts due
to other banks or due to customers as appropriale Secunties purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to cther banks
of customers as appropnate The difference between the sale and repurchase pnce is treated as interest and accrued over the penod of the repo agreements using the
effective interest method

(i) Securitles lending

Secunties lent to counterparties are retained in the financial statements Secunties borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements unless these are soid to third
parties, in which case the purchase and sale are recorded with the gain or loss mcluded in trading income  The obhgation to retumn themn 1s recorded at far value as a
trading hability

Financial liabilities

The Group classfies its financial labilites m the following categones financial llabilites measured at amortised cost and financial habities at fair-value-through-profit-or-
loss Financial liabttites at fair-value-through-profit-or-loss have two sub categories financial habiites held for trading and financial labiities designated at far-value-
through-profit-or-loss upon iniial recognition

The Group designates financial liabilites at far-value-through-profit-er-loss when any of the following apply

a) it elminates or significantly reduces measurement or recogniion inconsistencies, or

b) financial habilities share the same nsks with financial assets and those rnisks are managed and evaluated on a farr value basis or
¢} structured products containing embedded denvatives that could significantly modity the cash flows of the host contract

Financial habilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract 1s discharged cancelled or expires
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Principal accounting policles {continued)

Leases

(f) Accounting for leases as lessee

Finance leases

Leases of property plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are dassified as finance leases Finance leases are
capitalised at the nception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments Each lease payment s
allocated between the hability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding The interest elament of the finance cost 13 charged
to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant penodic rate of intarest on the remaining balance of the liability for each penod The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases 13 depreciated over the shorter of the useful ife of the asset or the lease term

Operating leases
Leases where a significant porbion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classfied as operatng leases Payments made under operabng
leases {net of any incentves receved from the lessor) are charged to the income statemnent on a straight-ine basis over the pencd of the lease

(i} Accounting for leases as lessor

Finance leases

Vhen assets are leased out under a finance lease the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a re ble The diference between the gross recervable
and the present value of the receivable 1s recognised as uneamed finance income Lease income 1S recognised over the term of the lease using the net invasiment
method, which reflects a constant pencdic rate of retum

Operating leases

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet They are depreciated over their expected useful lives on &
bas:s consistent with simitar owned property, plant and equipment Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) 18 recognised on a straight-ine basis over the
lease term

fncome tax
{i} Current income tax

tncome tax payable on profits based on the applicable tax law in each junisdiction is recogrised as an expense in the penod in which profits anse The tax effects of income
tax losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it 18 probable that future taxable profits will be avalable against which these losses can be utlised

(i) Deferred Income tax

Deferred income tax 1s provided in full, using the hiability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and habilites and their carrying amounts
in the consohdated financial statements Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the penod when the asset s realised
or the liability s settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balanca sheet date The pnneipal temporary differences
anse from imparment of financial assets depreciation of fixed assets, pension and cther retirement benefit abligations, and revaluaten of certain financial assets and
liepilites, including derivative instruments

Deferred 1ax assets are recognised where it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utihsed Deferred tax
related to changes In far values of avalable-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges which are recognised to other comprehensive income 1s also recognised to other
comprehensive income and s subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the deferred gan or loss

Emptoyes benefits
(i) Pension obligations

The Group provides a number of defined contribution pension plans where annual contnibutions are wnvested and allocated to spectfic asset categones Eligible employees
are entitled 1o the overall performance of the investment The Group s contnbutions are recognised as employee benefit expense in the year in which they are paid

(7} Standard legal staff retirement Indemnity obligations (SLSRI)

In accordance with the local labour legislation, the Group provides for staff retirement indemnity cbligation for employees which are entited to a lump sum payment based
on the number of years of service and the level of remuneration at the date of retirement, f they remasn in the employment of the Group until normal retirement age
Provision has been made for the actuanal value of the lump sum payable on retrerment (SLSRI) using the projected unit credit method Under this method the cost of
providing retirement indemnities 13 charged to the income statement so as to spread the cost over the penod of service of the employees in accordance with the actuanal
valuatons which are performed every year The SLSRI obligation 1s calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government
secunties which have terms to matunty approximatng the terms of the related liability Actuaral gains and losses that anse in calculating the Group s obligation In respect
of the SLSRI obligations are charged directly In the profit and loss for the year

In addition, the Group has enhanced tha above provision by taking into consideration potential separatons before normal retrement based on the terms of previous
voluntary separation schemes The Group recognises separation indemnity when it 15 demonstrably committed to separatons either according to detailed formal plans
which are announced and canneot be withdrawn or s & result of mutually agreed termination terms Benefits payable in more than 12 months from the balance sheet date
are discounted to present valus

{ili) Performance-based cash payments

The Group’s Management awards high performing employees with bonuses in cash from tme to tme on a discretionary basis Gash payments requinng only
Management approval are racogmised as employee benefit expenses on an accrual basis Cash payments requinng General Meeting approval as distnbution of profits to
staff are recognised as employes benefit expense in the accounting penod that they are approved by the Group's shareholders

{iv) Perfarmance-based sharo-based payments

The Group s Management awards employees with bonuses in the form of shares and share options on a discretonary basis Non-performance related shares vest in the
penod granted Share based payments that are contingent upon the achievernent of a performance and service condition vest only if both conditions are satisfied

The farr value of the shares granted 13 recognised as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase in share capital {par vatue) and share prermium

The farr value of the options granted 1s recognised as an employes benefit expense with a comesponding increase in a non-distnbutable reserve over the vesting penod
The proceeds received net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital (par value) and share premium when the options are exercised, with a
transfer of the non distnbutable reserve to share premum
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Principat accounting policies {continued)

Insurance actlvities
(i) Revenue recognition

For casualty, property and short-duration ife insurance contracts premiums are recognised as revenue (eamed premiums) proportionally over the penod of coverage The
partion of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired nsks at the balance sheet date 18 reported as the uneamed premium liabiity Premiums are
shown before deduction of commission or reinsurance premium ceded

For long-term insurance contracts premiums are recognised as revenue when they become payable by the contract holder Premiums are shown before deduction of
commission A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future 1 recorded when the insurance contract 1s in force and the premiums are
recognised

(il} insurance fabilities
Insurance reserves are dassified as follows

Mathemahcal reserves

Mathematical reserves represent insurance provisions for long-term Ife insurance contracts They are calculated 1n accordance with actuanal techniques, after taking into
account the technical assumptions imposed by supenisory authonties {mortality tables and the techrical interest rate), in effect at the contract’s inception, as the difference
between the actuanal present value of the contract's habilties and the present value of the premiums to be received

Uneamed premium and unexpired nsk reserves

Uneamned premiums' reserves reprasent the part of the premium wntten for short term life, and property and casualty insurance contracts, thal relates to the perod beyond
the reporing date until the termination of the period covered by the respective premium of the contract. An addibonal provision for unexpired nsks 1s made when it 1s
anticipated that uneamed premiums will be insutficient to meet future losses and loss adjustment expenses of business in force at the reporting date

Outstanding claims’ reserves

Outstanding claims reserves are set for habiliies on claims incurred and reported but not fully setiied by the end of the reporting penod The specified liabilities are
examined on a case-by-case basis by professional valuers, based on existing infermation (loss adjustors' reports medical reports, court decisions etc) The Group
recognises additional provisions regarding claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) by the end of the reporbing penod The calculaton of these provisions 15 based on
statistical methodologies

{iil) Liabliity adequacy

At each reporting date the Group performs a liability adequacy test ({LAT') to assess whether its recognised insurance ablites are adequate by using curent estmates of
future cash flows including related handling costs If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance habilites is inadequate in the light of the estmated
future cash flows the entire deficiency 15 recognised in the income statement

{iv) Reinsurance

Contracts entered into by the Group with rensurers under which the Group 1s compensated for losses on one or mere contracts issued by the Group and that meet the
classficaton requirements for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held

The benefits to which the Group 1s entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets These assets consist of short-term balances due
from reinsurers, as well as longer term recevables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits ansing under the related rensured insurance contracts
Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the
terms of sach reinsurance contract Reinsurance liabilities are pnmanly premiums payable for reinsuranca contracts and are recognised as an expense when due

The Group assesses Its rensurance assets for impairment at each reportng date |f there is objective evidence that the rensurance asset s impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to Its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the iIncome statement

Rapossossed properties

Land and buildings repossessed through an auction process to recover impaired loans are except where otherwise stated mcluded in "Other Assets” Assets acquired
from an auction process are held temporanly for liquidation and are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Any gamns or losses on liqudation are included in
"QOther operating income”

Related party transactions

Related parties include associates, feliow subsidianes directors and key management personnel, their close familes companies owned or controlled by them and
companies whose financial and operating policies they can influence Transactions of similar nature are disclosed on an aggregate basis All banking transactions entered
into with related parties are n the normal course of business and on an arm's length basis

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 1t 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the abligation and reliable estimates of the amount of the obligation can be made

Sagment reporting

A segment 13 a compenent of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenue and incur expenses within a paricular economic environment
Operating segments are identiied an the basis of iternal reports about components of the entity that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance The chief operating decision maker has been identfied as the Strategic Planning Group (SPG) that
makes strategic decisions The Group ts organised into five main business segments Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment performance include transfers
between business segments Such transfers are accounted for at competitive prices In ine with charges to unaffilated customers for similar services

Share capital
Ordinary shares and preference shares are classified as equity
Incremental costs directly atinbutable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds net of tax

Dividend distnbution on shares s recognised as a deduction In the Group's equity when approved by the Group's sharehclders Intenm dividends are recognised as a
deduction in the Group’s equity when approved by the Board of Diractors

Whers any Group company purchases the Company's equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid including any directly attnbutable incremental costs (net
of Income taxes), I1s deducted from sharehoiders’ equity untl the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued any
consideration received i1s included in shareholders' equity
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(v}

(w}

(x)

v}

Principal accounting pelicies (continued)

Proferred securitios

Preferred secunties issued by the Group are classified as equity when there Is no contractual obligation to deliver to the healder cash or another financial asset
Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new prefermed secunties are shown in equity as a deducton from the proceeds, net of tax

Dividend distnbution on preferred secunties 1s recognised as a deduction in the Group's equity on the date 1t 1s due

Where preferred securities issued by the Group, are repurchased, the consideration paid including any directly attnbutable incremental costs (net of income taxes), 1s
deducted from sharehotders’ equity Where such securnties are subsequently called or sold any consideration received 1s included in shareholders’ equity

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the 1ssuer to make specfied payments to reimburse the holder for a loss 1t Incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due n accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Such financial guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking facilites

Financial guarantees are inbally recognised In the financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given Subsequent to inibal recognition, the Group’s
labilites under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial measurement, less amortisation calculated to recognese In the income statement the fee income
eared on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee and the best estmate of the expenditure required to settfe any financtal obligation ansing at the balance sheet
date These estimates are determined based on experience of simidar transactions and history of past losses supplemented by the judgment of Management Any
Increase (n the hability relating to guarantees 15 taken to the ncome statement

Secuntisations

The Group securitises financial assets, which generally results in the sale of the assets to special purpose entities (accounting policy b (1)) which in tumn 1ssue debt
secunties to investers and 1n some instances to Group companies These secuntisations are all consohdated by the Group as 1t 15 exposed to the majonty of nsks and
rewards of ownership in the speciat purpose entiies

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks other shart-term highly bquid investments with oniginal matunties of three months or less,
and bank drafts

Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the Group’s Management makes vanous judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and habiities recognised in the financial statements within the next financial year Estimates and judgments are continually evatuated and are based on
histoncal expenence and other factors including expectations of future avents that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

(a} impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews Its loan portfolios to assess impairment continuously In determining whether an impairment loss shoutd be recorded in the income statement, the
Group makes judgments as to whather there 1s any observable data indicating there 1s measurable decrease in the estmated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identfied with an individual Joan in that portfolio This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change
In the payment status of borrowers in a group or natienal or local ecanomic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group Management uses estimates
based on histoncal loss expenence for assets with credit nsk charactenistics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future
cash fiows The methodology and assumptions used for estmating both the amount and tming of future cash flows are reviewed regulary to reduce any differences
between loss estmates and actual loss experence

(b} Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group assesses annually whether there 1s an indication of goodwill imparrment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2 h (1} The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined based on value in use calculations These calculations are based on profitability and cash flow projections, which require
the use of estimates such as growth rates for revenues and expenses and profit margins

(c) Fair value of financial Instruments

The far value of financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market are determined by using valuation technmiques In these cases, the fair values are estimated
from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments or using models Where market observable inputs are not avallable, they are estimated based on
appropriate assumptions Where valuaton techniques are used to determine far values, they are valdated and penodically reviewed by qualified personne! independent of
the personnel that created them All models are certified before they are used and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
pnces To the extent practicable, models use only observable data, however areas such as credit nsk {both own and counterparty) volatiites and correlations require
management to make estrmates Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments

(d) Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

The Group determines that avallable-for-sale equity investments are impared when there has been a significant or prolongad decline in the fair value of the equity
Investments below their cost In determining what s sigrificant or prolonged the Group's management exercises judgment In making this judgment the Group evatuates
among other factors, the normal volatility In share pnce In addition, impairment may be appropnate when there 1s objective evidence of detenoration in the financial health
of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in tachnology, and operational and financing cash flows

fe} Securitisations and consolidation of special purpose entities

The Group sponsors the formation of special purpose entibes (SPEs) for vanous purposes including asset securitisation The Group may or may not directly own the SPEs
and consolidates those SPEs that it controls |n determining whether the Group controls an SPE 1t makes judgments about its exposure to the nsks and rewards related to
the SPE and about its ability to make operational decisions for the SFE in question

{f) Income taxes

The Group 18 subject to income taxes In vanews Junsdichions and eshmates are required In determining the provision for income taxes There are many transactons and
calculations for which the ulimate tax deterrmination 1s uncertan during the ordinary course of business The Group recognizes habilibes for anticipated tax audit 1ssues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these matters 1s different from the amounts that were inutially recorded, such
differences witl impact the iIncome tax and deferred tax provisions in the pened in which such determination 1s made
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41

42

421

Critical accounting estimates and judgments In applying accounting policies (continued)

(g} Retirement benefit obiigations

The present value of the retirement benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determmed on an actuanal basis using a number of assurmptions Any
changes in these assumptions will Impact the carrying amount of pension obligations

The assumplions used in determining the net cost (income} for pensions include the discount ratefuture salary increases and inflation rate The Group determmnes the
appropnate discount rate at the end of each year In determwning the appropnate discount rate the Group uses interest rates of government secunties which have terms to
matunty approximating the terms of the related kability Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions

(h) Share-based payments

The Group grants shares and share options to the employees as a common feature of employee remuneration IFRS 2 requires recogmition of an expense for those shares
and share options at the fair value on the grant dats (equity-settled plans) For shares granted to employees the fair value s measured directly at the market pnce of the
entity's shares adjusted to take into account the terms and conditons upan which the shares were granted For share options granted to employees in many cases market
pnces are not avalable because the options granted are subject to terms and conditions that do net apply to traded cptions if this 1s the case, the Group estmates the fair
value of the equity instruments granted using a valuation technique, which is consistent with generally accepted valuation methadologies

Financial risk management

Usa of financlal Instruments

By therr nature the Group's actwities are pnncipally related to the use of financial instruments including denvatives The Group accepts deposits fram customers, at both
fixed and floating rates, and for vanous penods and seeks to earn above average interest margins by investing these funds in high quality assets The Group seeks to
increase these margins by consalidating short-term funds and lending for longer penods at hugher rates, while maintaining sufficient liguidity to meet all claims that might fall
due

The Group alsc seeks to raise Its interest margins by obtaining above average margins, net of provisions, through lending to commercial and retail borrowers within a range
of credit standing Such exposures include both on-balance sheet loans and advances and off-balance sheet guarantees and other commutments such as letters of credit

The Group also trades in financial Instruments where 1t takes positons In traded and over the counter instruments including denvatives 1o take advantage of short-term
market movements in the equity and bond markets and in currency and interest rates The Eurcbank's Risk Committee places trading imits on the level of exposure that
can be taken n relation to overnight and intra-day market positions as well as limuts 1n longer durations With the exception of specific hedging arrangements foreign
exchange and Iinterest rate exposures associated with these denvatives are normally concluded to hedge outstanding positons thereby controlling the vanability in the net
cash amounts required to offset market positons

Financial rizk factors

The Group’s activities expose It o a vanety of financial nsks credit sk, market nsk {including currency risk and interest rate nsk) and liquidity nsk The Group's overall nsk
management policies focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance, financial
position and cash flows

Crodit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit nsk which s tha nsk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due Impairment provisions are recognised for
losses that have been mcurred at the balance sheet date Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of a partcular industry segment that represents a
concentration in the Group's portfolio, could result in losses that are different from those provided for at the balance sheet date Management therefore carefully manages
its exposure to credit nsk

The Group structures the levels of credit nsk it undertakes by placing hmits on the amount of nsk accepted in relation to cne borrower, or groups of bormowers and to
geographical and industry segments Such nisks are monstored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual or more frequent review The level of credit risk by
product, Industry sector and by country are reviewed quarterly by Eurobank’s Risk Committee The exposure to any one bomower including banks and brokers s further
restncted by sub himits covenng en and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery nisk imits in relation to trading tems such as forward foreign exchange contracts
Actual exposures against limits are monitored on a datly basis

The Group 1s active in the corporate and retail lending markets Credit nsk 15 well spread over a diversity of personal and commercial customers Exposure to credit nsk 1s
managed through regular analysts of the ability of borrowers and patential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing the lending limits
where approprate The Group reduces its credit nsk associated with loans and advances to customers by entenng into collateralised arrangements The types of collateral
that the Group obtains are cash deposits and other cash equivalents, real estate, receivables, secunbes vessels and bank guarantees

{a) Derfvatrves

The Group mantains control imits on net open denvative positions | 8 , the difference between purchase and sale contracts, by both amount and term At any one tme, the
amount subject to credit nsk 1s imited to the current fair vatue of instruments that are favourable to the Group (i & , derivatives with a positive faw value) which in retation to
denvatives 1s only a small proportion of the contract notional amount used to express the volume of instruments outstanding The credit nsk exposure 1s managed as part of
the overall lending limits with customers together with potential exposures from market movements Collateral or other sscunty 1s not usually obtained for credit nsk
exposures on these instruments except where the Group requires margin deposits from counterparties Further details of the Group s denvative instruments are provided i
note 18

(b} Master netting arrangements

The Group further restncts its exposure to credit losses by entenng into master netting arrangements with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volurne of
transactions Master neting arrangements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and habilibes as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis
However the credit nsk 15 reduced by a master netting agreement to the extent that if an event of default occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and
settled on a net basis The Group's overall exposure to credit nsk on dervative Instruments subject to master netting arrangemenits can change substantially within a shont
penod, as 1t 1s affected by each fransaction subject to the arrangement

(¢} Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of credit related commitments 1s to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the same
credit nsk as loans since thay represent Imevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet s obligations to third partes
Daocumentary and commercial letters of credit, which are wntten undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authonsing a third party 1o draw drafis on the Group up
to & stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are secured by the underlying shipment of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less nsk than a [oan
Commiiments to extend credit represent contractual commitments to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit for which the Group usually receives
a commitment fes Such commitments are Irrevocable over the Life of the faciity or revocable only 1n response to a matenal adverse effect
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4 Financial risk management {continued)

42 Financial risk factors {continued)
421 Credit risk {continued)

42 11 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

Credit nsk exposures relating to on-balance sheet assets are as follows

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers

~ Wholesale lending

- Mortgage lending

- Consumer lending

- Small business lending

Less Prowssion for impaument losses
Financial instruments at far value through profit or loss
- Debt secunties

Dervative financial instruments
Investment secunties

- Debt secunties

Other assets

Credit nsk exposures relating to off-balance sheet items (note 38)

% T 142010 &5" 20091
L€ milligg mlllro
5,169 4,784
23,657 22 780
17,119 15,412
8,926 10,306
B,995 9081

{2,329) {1,742)
287 508
1,440 1,224
15,942 14,562
754 675
2,734 2082
82,584 78,670

The above table represents the maximum credit nsk exposure to the Group at 31 December 2010 and 2008 without taking account of any collatesal held or other credit

enhancements that do not qualify for offset in the Group's financial statements

For on-balance sheet assets the exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as reportad in the balance sheat Off-baiance sheet items mentioned above
include letters of guarantee standby latters of credit commitments to extend credit and documentary credits

4212 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are summarised as follows

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impatred
Impaired

- collectively assessed

- indwidually assessed

Gross

Less allowance for impairment
Net

Included In gross loans and advances are

Past due more than S0 days
Of which non-performing loans

{a) Loans and advances neither past due nor impatred

{ 0 j.{ Egpﬁ} i 2009
gwm w&ﬁ “’Ns %I'%n

44,629 46,393
8,377 7,299
3,379 2,231
2,312 1656

68,697 57,579

{2,329) (1,742)

56,268 55 837
6,636 3850
3,534 2,074

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impared at 31 December 2010 and 2009 can be assessed by reference to the
Group's standard grading system The following tnformation 18 based on that systam

Grades

Satisfactory nsk

Watch list and special mention
Total

(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired

Past due up to 29 days
Past due 30 - 89 days
Past due 90 - 180 days
Total

Fair value of collateral

Past due up to 29 days
Past due 30 - B9 days
Past due 90 - 180 days
Total

Fair value of collateral

O ibe ol et v 131 December, 20105

lf' A

Wholasalg “dr¢; Mdrtgage, 7, ’nﬁConsuma
R +, !
€ million T

€ millien .

Small busmess
&

«+ Emillion

1,424 1,628 1,262 1,019
991 548 548 667
269 221 - -

2,684 2,297 1,810 1,686

1,730 3,980 - 970

h K3

v 31 December 2009 . 105" )t sk

I

Wholesale-

Mortgage®

CoqsuFer. = Smajf bugtges# :E‘E'.

1,267 1118 1689 783
598 447 599 496
156 1486 - -
2,021 &Kl 2288 1279
1,263 2,846 - 726 4 835

Based on past expenence consumer and small busmess loans less than 90 days past due, and morigage loans and fully collateralised wholesale loans less than 180 days
past due, are not considered impaired unless specific information indicates to the contrary
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4 Financial risk management (continued}

42  Financial risk factors (continued)
421 Crodit risk {(continued)
4 2 12 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

{c) impaired loans and advances coliectively assessed
For collectvely assessed accounts, loans are treated as impaired based on histonical loss data for groups of loans with similar characteristics The cntena used by the
Group to determine that there 13 objective svidence of impairment are provided in Group's accounting palicy 2 (1)

The collectively assessed loans and advances to customers before taking into consideration the cash flows from collateral held are € 3 378 milhon (2009 € 2,231 millien)
The breakdown of the gross amount of collectively assessed loans and advances by class, along with the farr value of related collateral held by the Group as secunty are

as follows

(oY A T 5T T Dacambera0i0 .. o . L. weerd fR Y < £ -\},}31 DeoemEer’*ZUDQ

g’Mortgage o C|. 2 Small bt T ITE “’"‘&Total "'i‘& Mortgagé’ v“ " 1*5Cang ﬁ e i "”él BRI
L ,ac b = Rk . ‘ ._» : @g ;
= dhen > € mull ~ Emilhon s Y §rmlllgg rml :

[ -
Collectvely assessed
loans 815 1,636 1,028 3,379 392 1094 745 223
Fas value of collateral 1,292 - 499 1,79 661 - 426 1,087

(d) impaired loans and advances indmdually assessad
For individually assessed accounts, loans are treated as impaired as soon as there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred The cntena used by
the Group to determine that there 15 objective evidence of impairment are provided in Group's accounting policy 2 ()}

The ndwidually assessed loans and advances to customers befora taking into consideration the cash flows from collateral held are € 2,312 million (2009 € 1,656 milion)
The breakdown of the gross amount of individually sssessed loans and advances by class, along with the fair value of related collateral held by the Group as sscurty are

as follows
[ 31 December 2010° .. . IR U Decembemoos"*{
e ey ﬂggSmaIIL S 3 PR v (,‘:‘," ;
Wholesale -~ bu ness: - ’-'Total - «'Wholesale ;, - te
€ miltion ‘, E€milich "™ ~Emilllon' | ¥ ¥én :
Individually assessed loans 1,623 689 2,312 1215 441 1,656
816 400 1,216 686 244 930

Fair value of collatera)

o) Loans and advances renagotiated
In this catagory are included loans and advances, whose terms have been renegotated and are no lenger considered past due nor impaired, as the minimum number of
payments and conditions required under the new arrangements have been fulfilled

2008

mllf%h‘

- Wholesale lending -
- Mortgage lending a9 &
- Consumer lending 123 52
- Small businass lending 80 -
314 60

() Non-perforring loans

Non-performing loans are defined as the loans delinguent for a given penod determined in accordance with the Group's poticy Mortgages are considered as non-
performing when they are delinguent for more than 180 days and consumer loans for more than 90 days Loans to corporate entittes are considered as non-performing
when they are transferred to non accrual status which occurs when the leans are delinquent for more than 180 days or earlier In the case of a matenal credit event

i *uﬁnwzggxo W 2009
€ mitilon| ¥L¥0E mulis
- Wholesale lending 924
- Morigage lending 760 364
- Consumer lending 1,511 1,056
- Small business lending 1,339 831
4,524 2974

4 2 1 3 Debt Securities
The table below presents an analysis of debt secunties by rating agency designation at 31 December 2010 and 2009 based on Moody's ratings or their equivalent

g =, 31 Decembor 2010w =i s AR P e e b |

Trading  Avallable-for- Held to maturity ;. Debt séc nltms‘g'f;, f &!‘ e

« securities sale secunties 3 secuntles-alendln’g’ y rtf IIuH-w; otal

"€ million € milllon Emillion” *, *® 5 € pliiliont " * R illion

Aaa 26 609 811 - 1,445
Aa1to Aad . 51 166 198 415
Al o A3 ) 613 92 169 779
Lower than A3 224 1,483 2,360 9,351 13,418
Unrated 33 92 0 47 172
Total 287 2,748 3,429 9,765 16,229
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4 Financlal risk management {continued)

42 Financial risk factors {continued)
421 Credit risk (continued)

4 2 1 3 Dabt Securities {continued)

Aaa

Aa1to Aa3
Alto Al
Lower than A3
Unrated

Total

_9% .‘wa‘%g X S

T Trédiy % AvVailab e-‘fgﬁﬂ._hr‘i id {8 mattiny ﬁ&‘}{
| I secunhes a;msa .«sea:ur’;tﬁes*,r\1'~ "5@3‘ vﬂggg e
~€ mich " Emillign . RIS &) ¥
13 804 4,235 - 2,082
0 94 164 192 450
334 3654 1,021 3,562 B 571
a8 1,660 1205 288 3,751
71 162 1] " 244
506 6 274 3,625 4 663 15,068

€ 12,5673 millien included in secunties rated Lower than A3, relates to sovereign debt 1ssued mainly by Euro-zona members European Union members and candidate

members (2009 € 3,454 milion}

4 2 1 4 Concontration of credit rigk

(a) Geographical sectors

The following table breaks down the Group s main credit exposure at their gross carrying amounts, as categonsed by geographical region as at 31 December 2010 and
2009 For this table, the Group has allocated exposures to regions based on the country of domucile of its counterparues

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
- Wholesale lending

- Mortgage lending

- Consumer lending

- Small business lending

Debt sacunties

Denvative financial instruments
Other assets

Balance at 31 Dacember 2010

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
- Wholesale lending

- Morigage lending

- Consumer lending

- Small business lending

Debt secunties

Denvative financial instruments
Other assets

Balance at 31 December 2008

{b) industry sectors

984 3638 318 219 5,169
16,718 769 5,894 176 23,657
11,413 68 5,617 21 17,119

6,398 1 2,517 10 8,928
7.039 [} 1,946 10 8,995
9,788 2,762 3,265 424 16,229

392 813 44 191 1,440

521 29 101 3 T64
53,353 8,070 19,702 1,054 82,179

- Eu sﬁ:ikg, mé e
/ W{Egg’i trigsx ¥ mJ‘\‘*‘cq‘unt ;

& milion S Emien LT TN ER
838 3,494 376 76 4,784
16 003 889 5700 188 22 780
10,620 64 4,706 22 15412
7,304 1 3 001 0 10,306
7 169 0 1912 Q 9,081
7,711 3,052 3927 378 15,068
327 802 239 66 1,224
498 10 144 23 675
50 470 8312 19 795 753 79 330

The following table breaks down the Group’s mam credit exposure at their gross carrying amounts, as categonsed by the industry sectors of its counterpares as of 31

December 2010 and 2009
- B 31 Decemher 2010+ FREB i ¢ &
« Cominerce, . pE e ~+ w:t.'...\l,,_;._ ot S G, Ty L S0
Sy \.:a\r«Ly . ’{iéprlvaﬁeﬁ' 1:’:?'4’1 Py }j;“ b 1 "W

‘services . individuats Manulacturlng N ' = ﬂ * Shfpang 5 Cnnstructlon =

Emilion  €miwon’  €millien " €million *™* eiiiniat - *t‘*
Loans and advances to banks 5,159 - - - -
Loans and advances to customers
- Wholesale lending 13,430 B38 5,264 1,296 2,306
- Mortgage lending - 17,119 - - -
- Gonsumer lending - 8,926 - - .
- Small business lending 7.448 137 BOG . 806 98 8,995
Debt secunties 2,123 - 76 - 68 13,962 16,229
Derwative financial mstruments 1,082 1 40 65 M 238 1,440
Other assots 320 8 1 - 1 424 754
Balance at 31 December 2010 29,642 26,729 6,187 1,360 2,914 15,447 82,179
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Financial risk management {continued}

Financial risk factors (continued)
Crodit risk {continued)

4 2 1 4 Concentration of credit nsk (continued)

422
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Loans and advances to banks 4784 -
Loans and advances to customers
- Wholesale landing 13 682 4186 5,053 1,008 1947 666 22780
- Mortgage lending - 15412 - - - - 15412
- Cansumer lending - 10 306 - - - - 10,308
- Smali business lending 7,285 32 913 - 716 135 9,081
Debt secunties 2448 - 232 - 68 12,320 15 068
Denvatve financial nstruments 899 1 37 52 28 210 1,224
Other assets 308 10 1 1] o] 355 675
Balance at 31 December 2009 29,417 26,177 6,236 1 058 2756 13 686 79 330

Credit exposure to other industry sectors includes mainly sovereign assets

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks Market nisks arise from exposure on interest rate, currency and equity preducts or combinaton of them all of which are
exposed 1o general and specdic market movements Specifically, the market nsks the Group 1s exposed to are the following

{a) Interest rate risk

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuatons In the prevaiiing levels of market interest rates on its financial positions and cash flows Cash flow interest rate
nsk 18 the risk that the future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates Fair value interest rate sk is the nsk that the
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce or
create Iosses in the event that unexpected movements anse The Eurobank's Risk Committee sets imits on the lavel of mismatch of interest rate repncing that may be
undertaken and exposures are menitored daily

(b} Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure 1o the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows The Eurobank's Fusk
Committee sets imits on the level of exposures which are monitored daily

(c) Equity risk
Equity pnce nsk 1s the nsk of the decrease of farr values as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of ndividual stocks The equity nsk that the
Group undertakes, arises mainly from the investment portfelio The Eurobank's Risk Commuttee sets Iimits on the level of the exposures which are monitored daily

Market nsk In Greece, Cyprus and Poland 18 managed and monitored using Value at Risk (VaR) methodology Market nsk in New Europe s managed and mortored using
mainly sensiivity analyses |nfarmation from New Europe 1s presented separately as d onginates from signdicantly different ecenomic environments with different nsk
charactaeristics

() VaR summary for 2010 and 2009

VaR 13 a methodology used in measunng financial nsk by estimating the potential negative change in the market value of a portfolio 8t a given confidence lavel and over a
specified time henzon The VaR that the Group measures i1s an estimate based upon a 99% confidence level and a holding penod of 1 day and the methodology used for
the calculation 13 Monte Carlo simulation (full repncing)

The VaR models are designed to measure market nsk in a normal market environment. It 1s assumed that any changes occumng in the nsk factors affecting the normal
market environment will follow a normal distnbution

Although VaR 18 an important tool for measunng market nsk, the assumptons on which the model s based do give nse to certain imitabons Given this actual outcomes
are monitored regulary wia back testing process to test the valdity of the assumpbons and the parameters used in the VaR calculation

Since VaR consttutes an integral part of the Group's market nsk contro regime VaR limsts have been established for all (trading and investment portiolios) operations and
actual exposure 1s reviewed dally by managemant However the use of this approach does not prevent losses outside of these imits in the event of extraordinary market
movements

Average VaR by nsk type (Trading and investment portiolios™™ ) - Greece, Cyprus and Poland

2010
Interest Rate Risk
Foreign Exchange Risk 2
Equities Risk 12
Total vaR 52

™ Interast rate volatiity spphed to all portfokes Credit spread volatiity apphed to Trading and Avaiabie-for-sale posibons

The aggregate of the interest rate, foreign exchange and equities VaR results does not constitute the Group's total VaR due to correlatons and consequent diversification
effects among nsk factors
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Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors {continued)
Market risk (continued)

{n) Sensitivity analysis for 2010 and 2008

Sensitvity analyses used for monitonng market nsk stemming from New Eurcpe operations, excluding Poland and Cyprus do not represent worst case scenanos

[ TR, S1iDeEember 2010 ] g

3 Sensl‘twit?‘ of,

* 3 f 5 nsitivi

e i imiliton
Interest Rate +100 bps parallel shift (4} (5} (9)
Equities / Equity Indices / Mutual Funds -10% decrease on
prices ()] {0} ) )] 0 0
Foreign exchange -10% depreciation of functional currency
over foreign currencies (0} {93) (93} 5 (75) (70}
Liquidity risk

The Group 1s exposed 1o dally calls on its available cash resources due to deposils withdrawals loan draw-downs and guarantees, margin calls and payments on denvative
transactons The Group maintains cash resources to meet all of these needs The Eurobank's Risk Committee sets liquidity imits to ensure that sufficient funds are
available to meet such contingencies

The matching and controlled mismatching of the matunties and interest rates of assets and habilities is fundamental to the management of the Group It 1s unusual for
banks to be completely matched, as transacted business is offen of uncertain term and of different types An unmatched posiien potentially enhances profitability, but alsc
increases the nsk of losses

The matunties of assets and habiites and the abiity to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest bearing liabilites as they mature, are important factors th assessing the
lquidity of the Group and its exposure to changes in (nterest rates and exchange rates

Ligquidity requirements to support calis under guarantees and standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the commitment because past performance
supports that the third parties generally do not draw funds under the agreement The total outstanding centractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarly represent future cash requirements as many of these commitments will expire or terminate without beirg funded

Liquidity Risk Management Framowork
The Group's Liquidity Risk Management Policy defines the following supervisory and contral structure

- Eurobank Risk Committee's role is to approve all strategic hquwdity nsk management decisions and moniter the quantitatve and qualitative aspects of iquidity nsk

- Group Assets and Liabiliies Committee has the mandate to form and implement the liquidity palicies and guidelines in conformity with Group's nsk appetite and to review
monthly the overall iquidity position of the Group

- Group Treasury is responsible for the implementaton of the Group’s iquidity strategy the daly management of the Group's hquidity and for the preparaton and
monstaning of the Group s iquidity budget

- Global Market and Counterparty Risk Sector 1s responsible for measunng menvoring and reporting the liquidity of the Group

The following ist summanses the reports which are produced an a penodic basis
(a) The regulatory iquidity gap report along with the regulatory iquidity ratios

(b) Stress test scenanos These scenanos evaluate the impact of a number of systemic stress events on the Group's liquidity position
{c) Liquidity warring indicators

Assets held for managing liquidity risk

The Group holds a diversified portfolio of cash and high liguid assets to support payment abligations and contingent deposit withdrawals in a stressed market environment
The Group's assets held for managing hquidity nsk compnss

(a) Cash and balances with central banks
(b) Eligible bonds and other financial assets for coltateral purposes
(c) Interbank placings maturing within one month

The unutiised assets containing highly lquid and central banks eligible assets provide a contingent iquidity reserve of € 6 bn as at 31 December 2010 In addition the
Group holds other types of highly liquid assets, as defined by the regulator amounting to€ 2 § bn (cash value)

Maturity analysis of liabitities

The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows for the yvears 2010 and 2009 Liabihites without contractual matuntes {sight and
saving deposits) are presented In the "less than 1 month" tme bucket The Bank has estabiished credit sk mitigation contracts with its interbank counterparties
{ISDAJCSA) Due to these contracts the Bank has already posted collateral equal with the valuation of its net habilites from interbank derivatives For denvative Labilives
not covered by ISDA/CSA agreements the negative valuation s presented at fair value in the "less than 1 month” tme bucket.

It should be noted that this table represents the worst case scenaro since st 1s based on the assumpton that all lakiities will be paid earlier than expected {all term deposits
are withdrawn at their contractual matunty) The recent expenence shows that even tn a penod of a systemuc financial cnsis the hkelihcod of such an event 15 remote

"< 3 31 December.2010 i 1

itflo
e Biiisi]

‘manths
S million’s

S
ff € million

Non-dernvative habllites

- Due to other banks & repurchase agreements with banks 16,303 10,373 407 748 26,831
- Due to customers 27,683 1,878 8,030 1,038 44,629
-EMTNs 5 640 890 2,960 4,485
- Secuntizations (redemptions and coupunsf” 35 72 1,076 566 1,748
- Other habilities 202 243 399 1,116 1,966

43,228 19,211 10,801 6,428 79,668
Denvative financial instruments 64 - - - 64

M0ut of secuntizations amounting to € 1 2 bn included in the up to 1 year range € 04 bn outflow 15 covered by respective inflows from mortgage loans with matched
matunty repayments
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Financlal risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors {continued)
Liquidity risk {continued)

Off-balance sheet tems

Credit related commitments
Capital expenditure
Operating lease commitments

e X LR YL by, vy St 31 December
s IS

Nan-denvative habiites

- Due to other banks & repurchase agreements with banks 6727 2,539 9,489 718 19,474
- Due to customers 27 518 10,832 7457 1,688 47 495
- ECPs 135 131 17 - 283
- EMTNs 2 405 422 5087 5,916
- Secuntzations (redemptions and couponsf! 65 130 1,066 1329 2,590
of which redemption of credit cards’ secunbzation 550
- Cther Labilives 789 47 198 726 1760
35 236 14,084 18 649 9,549 77,518
Denvative financial instruments 229 - - - 2&

Mout of securtzations amounting to € 1 3 bn included 1n the up to 1 year range, € 07 bn outflow 15 covered by respechive inflows from mortgage loans with matched
matunty repayments

Off-balance sheet tems Wi lessiihan] [5G 5% Ove
Frow a?;;éi eal "“fi"g‘g}, e;
it S BETE T

millio = el
Credit related commitments 1545 537
Capital expenditure 10 -
Operating lease commitments 70 81
1625 616

Due to the Greek sovereign debt cnsis, Greek banks could not access the markets for secured and unsecured funding As a result, all Greek banks obtaned funding
through the weekly tenders of European Central Bank (ECB) At the year-end the Bank s net balance with ECE totalled € 20 bn {2009 € 7 bn)

The third Review Report of the International Monetary Fund (28 February 2011) for the progress of the Economic Adjustment Program for Greece endersed by the Mimistry
of Finance and the Bank of Greece, reiterates the stability and soundness of the Greek banking system and stresses Its support to the banks’ efferts towards gradually
reducing dependence on the ECB in an orderly and smoath manner, without exacerbating the engoing economic contraction In this context, the Greek Government will
undertake mitatives to preserve sufficient system hquidity, including a new tranche of government guarantees for uncovered bank bonds in the amount of € 30 bn, and the
Bank of Greece will ask banks to devise and implement medum-term funding plans (note 43}

The Bank has recently undertaken significant initatives to strengthen s hquidity position In this context it has proceeded to the strategic cooperation n Poland {note 40}
which, upon its completion, will release approximately € 2 bn of hiquidity

Capital management

Pro-forma'" LES

¢ 2010 - % nd, 2010

€ million - € milhon|
Ordinary and Preferred shareholders' equity 5,772
Add Regulatory non-contrelling interest 232
Less Goodwill (533) {533}
Less Other regulatory adjustments {384} {394}
Total Tier | capital 5,341 5,087 5,365
Tier Il capital-suberdinated debt 799 800
Less Other regulatory adjustments (253) (214)
Total Regulatory Capital 5,836 5,613 5,951
Risk Weightad Assots 45,035 47,968 47,827
Ratios % | SRR T %)
Core Tier | 102 91 :X:]
Tier | 19 108 12
Capital Adequacy Ratio 131 "7 124

™ Pro forma with the compietion of the siralegic partrnership in Poland and the margar with Dias § A
@ 1 accordance with Bank of Greece rules (19 March 2010) effechve from 31 December 2009

The Group maintains an actvely managed capital base to cover nsks inherent in the business The adequacy of the Group's capital 1s monrored using, among other
measures, the rules and ratios established by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision ("BIS rulesfratios™) and adopted by the European Union and the Bank of
Greece in supervising the Bank

Page 23 31 December 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements




EFG EUROCBANK ERGASIAS S A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

@ Eurobank EFG

4

43

44

441

Financial risk management (continued}

Capital management {continuad)

The Group and its individually reguiated operations have complied with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year

The pnmary objectives of the Groups capital management are to ensure that the Group complies with externally imposed capital requirements and that the Group
mainiains strong capital ratos in order {o support its business and to maximize shareholders’ value

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the hght of changes in economic condibions and the nsk characteristics of its activibes In order to
maintain or adjust the capnal structure, the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders return capital to shareholders, issue capital secunties or
undertake other strategic imtiatives No changes were made in the objectives, processes and policies from previous years

Dunng 2010 the Group focused on the organic strengthening of its capital posibon and managed to maintain capital ratwos at levels comfortably above minimum required
This was achieved by generating and retaining profits and by active densking of lending portfolios through tighter credit policies and change in the portfolio mix in favour of
more secured loans In additon, it proceeded to two strategic intiabves namely the partnership in Poland (note 40) and the merger with Dias S A (note 22) which with ther
completion will increase on a pro-forma basis, the 31 December 2010 Capital Adequacy and Tier 1 raties 1© 13 1% and 11 9% respectively

Regutatery disclosures regarding capital adequacy and nsk management, based on Bank of Greece Acts 2592/2007 and 2632/2010 (Basel II, Pilar 3), are available at the
Bank's website

Falir values of financial assets and liabilitles

Fair value 1s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a hability setlled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm'’s length transaction A market price,
where an active market (such as a recognised stock exchange) exists 18 the best evidence of the farr value of a financial instrument VWhere market pnces are not
avallable, the fair value of financial assets and habilites 15 estimated using present value or other estimation and valuation techniques where all significant inputs are
observable

The values dernved using these techniques are significantly affected by underlying assumptions conceming both the amounts and timing of future cash flows and the
discount rates used The farr values of financial assets and llabiltes approximate thewr carrying amounts due to the followng reasons

a) trading assets, denvatves and other transactions undertaken for trading purposes as well as treasury bils avalable-for-sale secunties and assets and labidities
designated at fair-value-through-profit-or-loss are measured at farr value {notes 17, 18, 21 28, 29 and 30) by reference 1o quoted market prices when avalable If
quoted market prices are not avalable then the far values are eshmated using valuation techniques

b) substantially all of the Group’s other financial assets and liabilities are at floating rates of interest which re-pnice at frequent intervals Therefore the Group has no
significant exposure to fair value fluctuations and the carrying vatue of the financial assets and habilites 1s substantially equivalent to their fair values, other than
financial assets and financial liabiities which are referred to in notes 21 and 29

c) All financial Instruments that are measured at fair value are categonsed into one of the three fair value hierarchy levels at year-end based on whether the inputs
to their fair values are observable or non observable

1) Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for entcal assets or habilites Quoted pnces must be readily and regularly avaiable from an exchange or active
indeximarket location and prices must represent actual and regularly occurnng market transactions on an arm's length basis This level includes listed equity
securities, debt instruments and exchange traded dervatives

1} Level 2 - Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques where all significant inputs are market observable This level includes OTC denvative
contracts and structured assets and liabilites

1) Level 3 - Financial mstruments measured using valuaton technigues with significant non observable nputs
Financial assets and babilities measured at fair value

The classification of the Group's financial assets and liabiities using the fair value hierarchy 15 presented tn the foltowing table

il : 5% 31 Decamber 2010 i i : B 1.December 20057
H# T N " T B B
IR R L Aluation s
% N SRy I e #:
LA i 1 chniquet 45t
“&*\ vk LTE 1 bgwafa ity il
L S observable -
e FEhy R G
0 e Yot act:y
. +{Level 1} ., cTotall |3 ,;{(‘f ;
fr . € million € million SE

Financial assets
measured at farr value

Financial assets held

for trading 312 38 - 360 491 43 - 534
Financial assets

designated at fair value

through profit or loss 283 5 - 288 334 - - 334
Cenvative financial

instruments 7 1,433 - 1,440 12 1212 - 1,224
Available-for-sale

investment securities 3,165 214 - 3,369 6393 562 - 6,855
Total financial assets 3,757 1,690 - 5,447 7,230 1817 - 9,047
Financial habiities

measured at farr value

Dernvative financial

Instruments [ 2,675 - 2,681 13 2261 - 2,274
Trading llabiites 58 - - 58 25 - - 25
Due to customers

- Structured deposits - 192 - 192 - 358 - 358
- Unit inked preducts 293 362 - 665 323 407 - 730
Debt issued and other

borrowed funds

- Structured notes - 318 - 318 - 289 - 289
Tetal inanial abilities 357 3,547 - 3,904 361 3,315 - 3676
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Financlal risk management (continued)

Fiduciary activities

The Group pravides custady, trustee corporate admunistration, Investment management and advisory senaces to third parties This involves the Group making allocation,
purchase and sale decisions n relabon o a wide range of financial instruments Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial
statements

Net interest income

K w{f:‘ETV 2912
s mitlioni

Interest income

Customers 3,302
Banks 103
Trading secunties 21
Qther secunties 778
Derivatives 1,113
5,317
Interest expense
Customers {1,191) (1,408)
Banks {373) (472)
Debt 1ssued and other borrowed funds {152) (216)
Dernvatives 1,347} (1,552)
(3,063) (3 646)
Net interest income 2,254 2,341

Net banking fee and commission income

WL E L, 2010

¥ f:.%%rﬁllhoi'ii
Lending related fees and commissions 199
Mutual funds and assets under management related fees 60
Capital markets related fees 56
Other fees 99
404

Income from non banking services

Income from non banking services Iincludes rental income from investment properbes and other recurnng income from services provided by the Group (eg payroll
services, e-commerce)

Net trading income and gains less losses from investment securnties

Debt secunties and other financial Instruments 113 114
Equity secunties and mutual funds 1 20
Changes i fair vatue of debtissued designated at fair value (note 29) 34 30
Revaluation on foreign exchange positions 18 7

166 171

Operating expenses

Staff costs (note 10)

Administrative expenses

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 23)
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets (note 24)

QOperating lease rentals

Staff costs

2 T o | TR

ff%' Eﬁi&i\%”r ‘?OJ E(.“) ”‘%_ ffﬁ;h-ggq&g‘}

2 e milhon million
Wages, salanes and performance remuneration 565 589
Social secunty costs 109 109
Addtional pension and other post employment costs 30 30
Other 88 1]

772 793

The average number of employees of the Group during the year was 22 596 (2009 23 791)
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Income tax expense

BT
7 A€ illion
Current tax 62
Deferred tax {note 12} (76)
Overseas taxes 21
Special tax contnbution (see below) 45
Total tax charge £2

For 2010 the nominal Greek corporate tax rate 1s 24% (2008 25%) According to a new draft tax law submitted to the Greek Parlament on 21 February 2011 the corporate
tax rate applicable as of January 2011 1s reduced from 24% to 20% In addition, dvidends distributed as of 2012 are subject to a 25% withholding tax (21% withholding tax

for dividends distnbuted within 2011}
*; 2010
i }ﬁmgml

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the applicable tax rates as follows

Profit before tax 136 398

Tax at the applicable tax rates k] 100

Tax effect of

-income and expenses not subject to tax {8) 41
- effect of different tax rates in different countnes {28) (34)
- special tax contnbution (see below) 45 57

- change in applicable tax rate for the Bank 9 -

- other 1 0

Income tax expense 52 82

Income tax expense includes the amount of € 45 million for the year 2010 and of € 57 millon for the year 2008 being a special tax contnbution mposed by Laws
3845/May2010 and 3808/December 2009 on legal entities' net revenues of years 2009 and 2008, respectively

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the habiity method at the rate in effect at the time the reversal 15 expected to take place

Tl PR
The movement on the deferred income tax account s as follows €-muilion % oy € million
At 1 January 376 228
Income statement credit/{charge) 76 124
Avallable for sale investment secunties
- fair value measurement (note 21 1) 18 (41)
- transfer to net profit {note 21 1) (8) 3
Cash flow hedges 17 8
Sale of treasury shares . 42
Other 9 11
At 31 December 487 375

L IEEEe

Deferred Income tax assets/labilities are attnbutable to the following items Eia €mild
Changes in fair value accounted dwectly to avaitable-for-sale revaluation reserve 110
Changes in fair vafue accounted through the income statement (75)
Cash flow hedges 27
Sale of treasury shares 41
Fixed assets (21)
Penstons and other post retirement benefits 19
Loan tmpairment 31
Unused tax losses 33
Other 42
Not deferred Income tax 487

The net deferred income tax ts analysed as follows

Deferred income tax assets {note 25)
Deferred incorme tax habilites {note 30}
Net deferred income tax

The deferred income tax (credity/charge in the ncome statemeant is attnbutable to the following items

Changes in fair value

Fixed assets

Pensions and other post retirement benefits
Loan impairment

Other

Deferred income tax (credit)/chargae {76) (124)
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Eamings per share

Basic earmings per share 1s calculated by drading the net profit attnbutable to ordinary sharehoiders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue dunng the
year, excluding the average number of ardinary shares purchased by the Group and held as treasury shares

The diuted eamings per share 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentally dilutive
ordinary shares The Group has three categones of potentally dilutive ordinary shares share opbons contingently (performance based) 1ssuable shares and convertible,
subject to certain conditions preferred secunties In order to adjust the weighted average number of shares for the share options a calculation 1s done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market pnce of the Bank's shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription nghts attached to outstanding share options The number of shares calculated as above 13 added to the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue

in order to determine the weighted average number of ordinary shares used for the calculation of the diluted earmings per share

Net profit for the year attnbutable to ordinary shareholders (after deducting dividend attnbutable

-4 Yoar gnde:

§a7

{.Décemberss: . |

[ ot o 20107 Pl g 2000

to preference shares and preferred securites holders special tax contribution and afier € milfion {78) a84
including gains/{losses) on preferred secunties)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue Number of shares 537,991,664 519,514,959
Weighted average number of ardinary shares for diluted earnings per share Number of shares 537,991,664 520 182 348
Basic and diluted eamings/(losses} per share € (0 15) 074
Basic and diuted eamings/{losses) per share excluding gains/(losses) on preferred secunties € (0 15) 041
Earnings/(losses) per shara excluding speclal tax contribution {note 11

Basic and diluted eamings/(losses) per share € {0 06) 0 85
Basic and diluted eamings/{losses) per share excluding gamns/{lossas) on preferred secunties € {0 06) 0 51

Share options did not have an effect in the diluted earmings per share, as ther exercise pnce exceeded the average annual market price of the Bank's share |In addition,
the Senes D and Senes E of preferred secunties (note 34) 1ssued in July and November 2009 respectively and the performance based issuable shares were not included in
the caleulation of diluted earnings per share for 2010 as theyr effect would have been ant-dilutive

Cash and balances with central banks

T 20 D
B
‘C’}milllon‘*
Cash in hand 586
Balances with central banks 3,020
3,606
of which
Mandatory deposits with central banks 1,414 1,403

Mandatory deposits with central banks represent the minimum level of average monthly deposits which the Group Is required to maintain Balances with central banks can

be withdrawn at any time provided the average menthly mimmum deposits are mantained

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances with less than 80 days maturty

., 2008
i | SRS

Cash and balances with centraf banks (excluding mandatory depasits with central banks) 2,192 1,676
Loans and advances o banks 1,739 2,252
Financial instruments at fair vatue through profit or loss 113 254

4,044 4182

Loans and advances to banks

v 2010, = . | 20089
s, j l 5 T i
émflTlén b e flon

Pledged deposits with banks 1,824 1 501
Collateral deposits for secuntisation of loans 1,336 1,154
Items in course of collection and current accounts with banks 247 81
Placements with other banks T41 826
Reversa repos with banks 1,010 1,166
Settlement balances with banks 2 256

5,169 4,784

The fair value of financial assets that the Group accepted as collateral and may be sold or repledged 1s € 1,168 million {2009 € 1,165 million)
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Financia) instruments at fair value through profit or loss (including trading)

Z L EAEER010
Trading portfolio =T TR mlli
Issued by public bodies
- govemment 257 379
- other public sector 1 2
258 381
|ssued by other issuers
- banks 35 99
- other 57 54
92 153
350 534
Othaer financial assets designatad at fair value through profit or loss
- unit linked products 283 324
- hedge funds 5 10
288 334
Total 638 868
Equity secunties 83 28
Treasury bills o 100
Debt secunties 287 406
COther financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 288 334
Total 638 BE8
Pledged secunties with stock market cleanng houses 2 5

Trading securities with fair value of € 97 million {2009 € 299 millicn) have been pledged under repurchase and other collateral agreements

Dorivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derlvative financial instruments

The Group utiises the following denvative instruments for both hedging and non-hedging purposes

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase or sell foreign and domestic currency Foreign currency and interest rate futures are contractual obhigations to
receive or pay a net amount based on changes in currency rates or interest rates or to buy or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a future date at a specified
pnce establishad in an organized financial market Since future contracts are collateralised by cash or marketable securites and changes in the futures contract value are
settled daily with the exchange, the credit nsk 1s neghgible

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows far another Swaps result In an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates
(for example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these (1 & cross-currency interest rate swaps) Except for certain currency swaps, no exchange of pnncipal
takes place The Group's credit nsk represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if counterparties fail to perform their obhigation This nsk 15 monitored on an
ongoing basis with reference to the current farr value, a proportion of the notional amount of the contracts and the iquidity of the market To confrol the level of credit risk
taken, the Group assesses counterparties using the same techniques as for its lending activites and/or marks to market with bilateral collateralisation agreements over and
above an agreed threshold

Foraign currency and interest rate options are contractua! agreements under which the seller (wniter) grants the purchaser {holder} the right, but not the obligation erther to
buy {a call option) or sell (8 put optron) at or by a set date or during a set penod, a specific amount of a foreign currency or a financial instrumant at a predetermined price
In consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange or interest rate nsk the seller receves a prermium from the purchaser Options may be erther exchange-traded or
negotated between the Group and a customer (OTC) The Group s exposed to credit nsk on purchased options only, and only to the extent of their carrying amount, which
18 therr fair value

The notienal amounts of certamn types of financial instruments provide a basis for companson with instruments recogrused on the balance sheet but do not necessarly
wdicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the (nstruments and, therefore do not Indicate the Group's expasure 1o credit or pnce nsks
The dervative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relatve o
ther terms The aggregate contractual of national amount of denvative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which mstruments are favourable of unfavourable and,
thus the aggregate fair values of denvative financial assets and liabiliies can fluctuate signiicantly from time to time The fair values of denvative instruments held are set
out in the following table
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Derlvative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Derlvative financlal Instruments (continued)

" " " 31Docember2010 . .. - ”? r
- Contragt/ 2347 ey ﬁ; .*3:1 ,%ﬁ W s
,ncg)tigﬂnai*— ka?.. ;‘ mFa r"value i"
amgurjtg&—'* i Assetsg oy "?3 L hnlmes
€ milllen~2, " smillg i |
Derivatives held for trading
OTC currency denvatives
- Currency forwards 926 16 13 1,184 25 9
- Cuirency swaps 9,073 19 296 9 007 68 147
- OTC currency options bought and sold 14,983 243 241 12 310 121 113
278 549 214 269
OTC interest rate denvabives
- Interest rate swaps 32,655 817 am 44,040 739 973
- Cross-currency interest rate swaps 4,846 17 106 1979 44 72
- Forward rate agreements 1,318 1] L] 758 Q 1
- OTC interest rate options 156,931 41 56 12,731 100 119
1,031 1,133 883 1,165
Exchange traded interest rate futures 105 T 6 8286 12 13
Exchange traded interest rate ophons 323 0 0 11 0 0
1,038 1,139 895 1,178
Other denvatives
Forward secunty contracts 13 0 0 754 4 ]
Qther denvative contracts (see below) 638 4 4 1028 24 16
4 4 28 16
Total derivative assets/liabiltties held for trading 1,320 1,692 1,137 1463
Derivatives designatad as fair vatue hedges
Interest rate swaps 6,867 &7 714 15 528 72 655
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 125 0 22 91 1 20
57 736 73 675
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 8,693 L8] 109 3,371 1 78
Cross-currency witerest rate swaps 3,912 4 134 3,367 13 43
45 243 14 121
Derivatives designated as net investment hedges
Currency forwards/currency swaps 601 18 10 529 4] 15
Total denvative assetsabilites used for hedging purposes 120 989 87 811
Total derivatives assets/liabilitios 1,440 2,681 1224 2,274

Other derivative contracts include credit default swaps, over-the-counter equity options, exchange traded index futures, exchange traded index options bought and sold and
commodity swaps

Hedge accounting

The Group uses denvatves for hedging purposes In order to reduce Its exposure to market nsks and non-denvative financtal instruments to manage fereign currency nsk
The hedging practices and accountng treatment are disclosed in Note 2 (d)

(a) Fair value hedges

The Group hedges a proportion of its existing interest rate nsk resulting from any potential decrease n the fair value of fixed rate financial assets denominated both in local
and foreign currencies using interest rate and cross currency interest rate swaps The net farr value of these swaps at 31 December 2010 was € 679 millon liability (2009 €
602 milion hability) The Group recognized a loss of € 4 milbon (2009 € 2 million loss) from changes in the fair value of the hedged itams attnbutable to the hedged nsk
net of the changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments

{b) Cash flow hedges

The Group hedges a proporbon of its existing interest rate nsk resulting from any cash flow vanability associated with future interest rate changes on vanable rate assets or
labilites or unrecognised highly probable forecast transactions using mterest rate swaps At 31 December 2010, interest rate swaps had a net fair value of € 198 million
habiity (2009 € 107 million Labiity) In 2010, the ineffectiveness recognised in Income statement that arose from cash flow hedges was € 0 03 milion gain (2009 € &
mallion losses)

(c) Net investment hedges

The Group hedges part of the currency transtation nsk of net nvestments in foreign operations through dervative finantial instruments and borrowings designated as
hedging instruments, the results of which have been deferred in the translabion reserve component of equity

Borrowings and denvative financial instruments amounting to € 797 millien (2009 € 866 mihon), analysed in RON 1 1 billion (2009 RON 1 1 billien}, RSD 5 6 billion (2009
RSD & 7 billion) and TRY 920 milion (2009 TRY 970 million}, gave nse to currency losses for the year of € 9 8 mdlion (2008 € 3 million gains), which affected negatively
the currency translation reserve
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19 Loans and advances to customers

Wholesale lending

Mortgage lending

Consumer lending

Small business lending

Gross loans and advances to customers
Less Provision for impairment losses (note 20)

The loans and advances to customers include the following amounts

- secuntised loans

- pledged [oans under third stream of Greek economy liquidity support program {note 43)
~ pledged loans under covered bond program {note 29)

- pledged loans with the European Central Bank (ECB)

- maturing after 1 year

Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivables as detaled below °

Gross iInvestment in finance leases receivable

Mot |later than 1 year 401 441
Later than 1 year and not later than & years 897 1,044
Later than 5 years 1,241 1,174
2,639 2659
Unearned future finance income on finance leases (511) (444)
Net investment in finance leases 2128 2215
Less provision for impairment Josses (89) (67)
2,039 2,148
The net investment In finance leases 1s analysed as follows
Not tater than 1 year 328 375
Later than 1 year and not later than & years 803 876
Later than 5 years 997 964
2,128 2215
Less provision for impairment losses (89} {67)
2,039 2143

20 Provision for impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

The movement of the provision for mpairment losses on loans and advances by class 15 as follows

- N ¢ 31 Decembet 2010° =3
‘ Wholesale “? Consumer ; - gxﬁgﬁgﬁ?@: .
4 f o L B w G e s e
€ million “o€Emidlion ¢ mellion :
Balance at 1 January 397 819 a3 443 1,742
Impairment losses on loans and advances charged in the year 176 866 78 244 1,362
Amounts recovered dunng the year 3 27 0 1 31
Leans wntten off dunng the year as uncotlectible {7} {638) {0) {60) (705)
Foreign exchange differences and other movements {8) {85) 0 (8) (101}
Balance at 31 Decembar 560 938 161 620 2,329
= .x =2 31 December 2009:
¢ i *Whalesale . ::T ‘b%r}git{jrg% - R Mq&ggg”’é\ ?gs%il.b
[ ™ &mition Y rEmilloR T ¢ Emilion® T g
Batance at 1 January 394 623 51 342 1,410
Imparrment losses en loans and advances charged in the year 125 827 32 193 1177
Amounts recovered dunng the year 18 39 0 0 57
Loans wntten off dunng the year as uncollectble (138) {609) (2) {88) {837}
Foreign exchange differences and other movements {2) {61) 2 {4) {65}
Balance at 31 December 397 819 83 443 1,742

Repossessed proportios
During the year the net increase in repassessed assets amounted to€ 108 milien (2009 € 64 millicn)

21 Investment securities
N 29@ Ein el 2009

. E{glhﬁgn e “??ﬁ”rﬁﬁﬁg

Available-for-sate investment secunties 3,369 6,955

Debt securities lending portfohio 9,765 4,663
Held-to-matunty investment securities 3,429 3,625

16,663 15,243

Matunng after 1 year 13,362 13,309
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Investment secunties of € 13 280 milion (2009 € 11,350 million) have been pledged under repurchase and other collateral agreemants

In 2008 and 1n accordance with the amendments to |AS 39 the Group reclassified eligible debt secuntes from the “Avalable-for-sale” portfolio to “Debt secunties lending”
porifolio carned at amortised cost Interest on the reclassdied secunties continued to be recognised In interest income using the effective interest rate method If the
financial assets had not been reclassified, changes in the far value for the period from the reclassification date untl 31 December 2009 would have resulted in € 498
million losses net of tax which would have been recogmised In the available-for-sale revaluation reserve Respectively changes i the far value for the year ended 31
December 2010 would have resulted in € 459 mibon [osses net of tax, which wouid have been recognised in the avalable-for-sale revaluation reserve

In Apnl 2010 and in accordance with IAS 39, the Group reclassified debt securities of € 3,518 million, isted on non-active markets, which the Group has the intentton and
ability to hold for the foreseeable future, from the *Avalable-for-sale” portfolic to “Debt secunties lending” portfolio carned at amortised cost From the reclassified amount, €
2,093 milhon are hedged for changes in the far value attnbutable to tnterest rate nsk, for which the Group will continue to apply hedging accounting Interest on the
reclassified secunties will continue to be recognised In interest ncome using the effective interest rate method

The carrying amount of the reclassified secunties as at 31 Decembar 2010 1s € 3 463 milkon In 2010 until the reclassification date, losses of € 118 million net of tax,
ansing from changes In the fair value of the secunties are recorded in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve (2009 lusses of € 27 million, net of tax) If the financa!
assets had not been reclassified, changes in the fair vatue for the peniod from the reclassification date untd 31 December 2010 would have resulted in € 607 milion losses
net of 1ax, which would have been recognised n the available-for-sale revaluation reserve

In Apnl 2010 the Group reclassified from the “Available-for-sale” portfolio 1o "Held-to-matunty” portfolio debt secunties of € 102 millon due to change of intention to hold

21 tnvestment secunties {continued)
the secunties to matunty
211 Avallablo-for-sale investment securities

N 2o 2010
1 w5 b
o i it

Issued by public bodies

- govemment 2,391
- other public sector 36
2,427
Issued by other issuers
- banks 330 338
- other 612 986
942 1,224
Total 3,369 8,955
Listed 2,893 6,330
Unhsted 476 625
3,369 5,955
Equity

Debt

The movement in the account 1s as follows

Net book value at 1 Januwary
Ansing from acquisitons

Reclassification ta held-to-matunty investment securities (102) -
Reclassification to debt secuntes lending portfolio {3,618) -
Additions 4,643 6,413
Disposals and redemptions {4,434) {4,864)
Amortisaton of discounts/premiums and interest (37 44
Net gains/(losses) from changes in fair value for the year (247) 79
Exchange adjustments 81 {6)
Net book value at 31 December 3,369 6 955

Equity reserve revaluation of the available-for-sale investments

Gains and losses ansing from the changes in the farr value of available-for-sale investments are recognised In a revaluaton reserve for available for sale financial asseis in
equity The movement of the reserve I1s as follows

o N ;;,P«,%zm 1]
4 K3 milhion
Balance at 1 January {473)
Net gans/({losses) from changes in fair value {211)
Deferrad income taxes 18
Non controlling interest's share of changes in far vatus 0
(193)
Net {gains)losses transfarred to net profit on disposal {70}
Impairment losses transferred to net profit 5
Deferred income taxes 15
(50)
Net {gains)losses transferred to net profit from farr value
hedges/amortisation of mark-to-market 121 33
Deferred income taxes {23) {11}
98 22
Balance at 31 December (618) (473)
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Investment securities {(continued)

Debt securitios lending portfollo

Issued by public bodies
- government
- other public sector

Issued by other issuers
- banks
- other

Total

Listed
Unlisted

Tha movement in the account is as follows

Net book value at 1 January

Reclassification from available-for-sale investment secunties
Additions

Disposals and redemptions

Amortisation of discounts/premiums and interest
Amortisatien of mark-to-market of reclassified secuntes
Changes in far vatue due o hedging

Exchange adjustments

Net book value at 31 December

Hald-to-maturity investment securities

Issued by public bodies
- government
- other public sector

Issued by other issuers
- banks
- other

Total

Listed
Unlisted

The movement in the account is as follows

Net book value at 1 January

Reclassification from available-for-sale investment secunties
Additions

Redemptions

Amortisation of discounts/premiums and interest
Amortisation of mark to market of reclassified secunties
Exchange adjustments

Net book value at 31 December
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3,618 -
1,918 2 898
{670) (1.988)
103 (4
T4 7
122 (99)
31 (10)
9,765 4 663
P
b 52010
v €mlwil igh
2,061 1924
- 95
2,061 2 020
620 688
858 917
1,378 1605
3,429 3625
3333 3,577
96 48
3,429 3625
J 2010
€ r‘mllfgn
3.628
102 -
163 991
{613) (423)
1 19
16 10
36 (24)
3,429 3 625
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Shares In subsidiary undertakings

The foltow:ng 18 a listing of the Bank's subsidianes at 31 December 2010

Be-Business Exmanges SA

BestDirect S A,

Dias S A

EFG Eurobank Ergasias Leasmg S A
EFG Eurolife General Insurance S A.
EFG Eurclife Life Insurance S A

EFG Insurance Seraces S A

Eurobank EFG Assaet Management Investment Fam § A
Eurobank EFG Business Services S.A.
Eurobank EFG Cards § A

Eurobank EFG Equities § A

Eurobank EFG Factors § A

Eurobank EFG Fin and Rent S.A
Eurobank EFG Financlal Planning Services S A
Eurobank EFG Mutual Funds Mngt Company S A
Eurobank EFG Property Servces S A
Eurobank Properties RE I C

Global Fund Management S A,
OPEN24S A

Tavros Protypi Anaptyxi S.A

Eurghank EFG Bulgana A D

Bulgaran Retail Sernces A D

EFG Auto Leasing EQOD
EFGteasingE AD

EFG Property Serwices Sofia AD

EFG Secuntes Bulgaria E.AD

IMO Property Investments SofiaE AD
EFG Hellas {Cayman Islands) Ltd

EFG Hellas 1l {Cayman Islands) Lid
Berbens Investments Limited

EFG Hellas Funding Limited

Eurabank EFG Cyprus Ltd

CEH Balkan Holdings Ltd

EFG New Europe Funding 11 Ltd
Eurccredit Retall Services Lid

NEU Property Holdings Ltd

Eurchank EFG Private Bank Luxembeurg S.A
Eurobank EFG Fund Management Company {Luxembourg) § A
Eurobank EFG Holding (Luxembourg) $ A
EFG New Europe Funding BV

EFG New Europe Funding 1B V

EFG Naw Europe Holding BV

EFG Leasing Poland Spzo o

EFG Poldystrybucja Spzo o

EFG Property Services Polska Spzo o
Bancpost 5 A

EFG Eurobank Finance $.A

EFG Eurobank Secuntes S A

EFG Leasing IFN S.A,

EFG Eurobank Property Serices S A
EFG IT Shared Services § A

EFG Retail Seraces IFN 5 A

Eliade Tower 5 A

IMO Property Investments Bucuresti § A
IMO-I Praperty Investments § A

Retail Development S A,

S € EFG Eurolfe Asiguran de Viata § A.
S C EFG Eurolfe Asigurari Generale S A
Seferco Development 8 A

Eurchenk EFG AD Beograd

EFG Asset Fin d o o Beograd

EFG Business Services d o o Beograd
EFG Leasing A D Beograd

EFG Property Services d 0 0 Beograd
IMO Property Investments A D Beograd
Reco Real Propery A D

Eurcbank Tekfen A S

EFG Finansal Kiralama A.S

EFG Istanbul Helding A S

EFG Istanbul Menkul Degerler A S
Public J§ C Universal Bank

EFG Property Services Ukraine LLC
Eurobank EFG Ukraine Distribution LLC
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98 01
100 00
2608
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
10000
10090
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 CO
5592
99 50
100 00
5592
9999
100 00
100 00
100 00
8000
100 00
10000
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 G0
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
10000
100 00
10000
100 00
100 00
100 00
10000
2002
100 00
100 00
100 00
8000
100 0O
100 00
5592
100 00
g9 89
8592
100 00
100 00
5592
99598
10000
100 00
2999
8000
100 00
5592
9924
9923
100 Q0
99 24
99 96
100 00
100 00

. TW—
C
Ingorparation’ oration

Greece
Greece
Greece
Greeca
Greece
Greace
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greece
Greeca
Greace
Bulgaria
Bulgaria
Buigaria
Bulgana
Bulgaria
Butgana
Bulgaria
Cayman |slands
Cayman Islands
Channel Islands
Channet Islands
Cyprus
Cyprus
Cyprus
Cyprus
Cyprus
Luxembourg
Luxembeourg
Luxembourg
Netherands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Poland
Potand
Poland
Romania
Romania
Romania
Romania
Roman:a
Romana
Romania
Romanta
Romana
Romania
Romania
Romania
Romania
Romania
Serbia
Serbia
Serbia
Serbia
Serbia
Serbla
Serbia
Turkey
Turkey
Turkey
Turkey
Ukraine
Ukraine
Ukraine
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Business-to business e-commerce
Sundry services

Closed-end investment fund
Leasing

Insurance services
Insurance services
Insurance brokerage

Asset management

Payroll and adwisory senaces
Credit card management
Capilal markets and advisory senices
Factonng

Vehicle leasing and rental
Management of receivables
Mutua! fund management
Real astate services

Real estate

investment adwsors

Sundry senvices

Real Estate

Banking

Credit card management
Vehicle leasing and rental
Leasing

Real estata services

Capital markets and investment services
Real estate services

Special purpose financing vehicle
Special purpose financing vehicle
Holding company

Special purpose financing vehicle
Banking

Halding company

Finance campany

Credit card management
Holding company

Banking

Fund management

Holding company

Finance company

Finance company

Hotding company

Leasing

Sundry services

Real estate services

Banking

Investment banking

Capital markets services
Leasing

Real estate services
Informatics data processing
Credit card management
Real estate

Real estate services

Real estate serices

Real estate

Insurance sericas

Insurance serices

Real estate

Banking

Assel management

Payroll and adwisory services
Leasing

Real estate services

Real estate serices

Real estate

Banking

Leasing

Holding company

Capital market services
Banking

Real estate saraces

Sundry services
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22 Shares In subsidiary undertakings {continued)

* . 7 A
a7 ok
Lt -y Name '

Anaptyd 2006-1 Pic

Anaptyxi APC Lid

Anaptya Hotdings Ltd ™

Anaptyxi Options Ltd®"

Anaptyxi SME | Holdings Ltd™
Anaptyd SME | Ple

Anaptyx SME 1 2009-1 Pic
Anaptyx] SME | APC Limited
Anaptyxl SME I Holdings Ltd*"
Andromeda Leasing | Holdings Ltd"
Andromeda Leasing | Plc

Danelon 2007-1 Ple

Daneion APC Ltd

Daneion Heoldings Ltd*?

EFG Hellas Plc

Karta 2005-1 Pic

Karta APC L1d

Karta Holdings ttd !

Karta LNI 1 Ltd

Kanta Options Ltd "

Satumn Finance Pl

Satum Holdings Ltd

Themeleion 1 Mortgage Finance Ple
Themele:on Il Holdings Ltd*"
Themeleian [l Morigage Finance Flc
Themeleion [V Holdings Ltd "
Themeleien |V Morigage Finance Ple
Themeleisn Mortgage Finance Plc
Themeleion V Holdings Ltd ‘"
Themeleion V Mertgage Finance Pic
Themeleion VI Holdings Ltd ™
Themelelon VI Mostgage Finance Ple

" not consohdaled dus te mmatenaity
{a) DlasS A, Greece

Ik

Ed v ¥ M T T ax _“Tb' T o -, ¥
Percentage ) Country of %}1 *_@giﬁ",‘i i 2 o Sl e 'ﬁ‘x ,a‘!:;'f_
Holding "| |incorporation ek ot S u Line of business Ty

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdam
United Kingdom
Uniled Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdern
United Kingdern
Unitad Kingdom
Unitad Kingdom
Uritad Kingdom
Umited Kingdom
United Kingdorm
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdam
United Kingdom

Special purpose financing vehicte (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicte (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Specal purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Specal purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicte (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (S1C 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (S1C 12)
Specil purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Special purpose financng vehicle (SIC 12)
Speaal purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Speacial purpase financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle

Specal purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12}
Specal purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12}
Special purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12}
Spedcial purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12}
Special purpese financing vehicle {(SIC 12)
Special purpese financing vehicle {(SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (S1C 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (51C 12)
Specal purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle {SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle {(SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle {(SIC 12)
Special purpose linancing vehicle (SIC 12)
Specal purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)
Special purpose financing vehicle (SIC 12)

Following the approval of the merger between Dias S A and the Bank by the companies' Board of Directors in November 2010 the Group obtained control over Diat
S A with the existing nominal shareholding percentage of 26 08% Dias S A 1s a closed-end investment company, isted in the Athens Stock Exchange with a
portfolio consisting manly of isted shares with significant geographic diversdication

(b} EFG Eurobank Ergasias Leasing S.A and Eurobank EFG Fin and Rent § A , Greece
In November 2010, the Greup decided to merge EFG Eurobank Ergasias Leasing S A with Eyrobank EFG Fin and Rent 5 A

{c) Eurobank EFG Equities § A , Gresce
In May 2010, Eurobank EFG Securibes S A merged with Eurcbank EFG Telesis Finance S A another 100% subsidiary of the Group The name of Eurobank EFG
Secunties S A changed to Eurobank EFG Equities S A

{d) Eurobank Properties RE | C, Greoce
Ins July 2010 Eurobank Properties R E | C merged with Kalabokis Tours & Cargo § A

(e) Eurobank Properties RE | C and Tavros Protypi Anaptyx: S.A , Greece
In November 2010, the Board of Directors of Eurcbank Properties R E | C approved the merger agreement for the absorption of Tavras Protyp Anaptyx S A by
Eurobank Properties R E | C with a transformation balance sheet as at 31 July 2010 In March 2011, the merger of the above named companies was completed

4] EFG Securities Bulgarla E A D, Bulgaria
In September 2010 the Group decided the liquidation of EFG Securities Bulgana E A D

(@) MO Property Investments Sofla E.A D, Bulgaria
In Apnil 2010 Business Services Bulgaria E AD was renamed to IMC Property Investments Sofia E AD and started s operations as a real estate services
cormpany

{h) EFG New Europe Funding lll Ltd, Cyprus
In December 2010, the Group established as a 100% subsidiary, EFG New Europe Funding |l Ltd, a finance company incorporated in Cyprus

) Bancpost 5 A, Romania
During the year, the Group increased its parbcipation in Bancpost S A from 98 98% to 99 02%

)] IMQ Property Investments Bucuresti S A , Romania
Dunng the year the Group Increased its participation in IMO Property Investments Bucurest S A from 99 99% to 100%

{k}  IMO-l Property Investments S.A (previously EFG Eurobank Mutual Funds Management Romania S A | S A ), Romania
In December 2010 the name and actvity of EFG Eurobank Mutual Funds Management Romaria S A| 5 A were changed The new name of the entity 15 IMO-H
Property Investments S A and it provides real estate services Following the increase in shareholding of Bancpost S A the Group increased its shareholding in IMO-
Il Property Investments 5 A from 99 88% to 99 69%

{1 Aristolux Investment Fund Managemant Company S A, Luxembourg
During the year, the Group increased its participation in Anstolux Investment Fund Management Company S A from 98 40% to 100% In March 2010, the hquidation
of the company was compleled

{m) BODD EFG Securities a d Beograd, Serbia
Dunng the year, the Group increased its participation in BDD EFG Secuntes ad Beograd from 88 32% io 100% In December 2010, the liquidation of the company
was completed
Post balance sheet avent
The Extraordinary General Meetings of 8th February 2011 of the Bank and Dias S A approved their merger, the latter being absorbed by the former The merger 1s
expected to be complated within the next few weeks with the appropnate registraton by the Minmistry of Regicnal Development and Competitiveness 1n the
Companies’ Registry The share exchange ratto was determined at § 3 Dias S A shares for each share of the Bank
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23 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2010

Ansing from acquisiton of subsidiares 0 0 0 - 0

Transfers 3 0 (0} 1 )
Additions 29 14 21 39 103

Disposals and write—offs {31) (17) (12) (1 (61)
Impairment (0) ©) 0) (1 (1)
Exchange adjustments 0} o 9 (2) (2)
Balance at 31 Decembaer 2010 528 297 485 434 2,044

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2010 (178) (180) (376} {21) {7565)
Arising from acquisition of subsidianes {0} (0) {0) - {0)
Transfers (0) {0) 1 0 1
Disposals and wnte-offs 19 12 11 i+ 42
Charge for the year (35) (26) {29) (5) (95)
Exchange adjustments 0 (0} (1] {0) {0)
Balance at 31 December 2010 {184) {194) {393) {26} (807)
Net book value at 31 Dacember 2010 534 103 §2 408 1,237
Cost.

Balance at 1 January 2009 758 315 470 382 1925
Ansing from acquisition of subsidiares 39 ® (1) - a8
Transfers 33 (6] 6 (234) -
Additons 42 14 21 56 133
Disposals and wnte-offs {29) (19) (17 (3) (68)
Impairment {0) - - - (0}
Exchange adjustments {10} (5) (3) _ (3 (21)
Balance at 31 December 2009 833 300 476 398 2,007
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2009 {158} (1686) (352) (18) (694)
Ansing from acquisition of subsidianes {0} (0} {1) - (1}
Transfers 0 0 1 (1) -
Disposals and wrnite-offs 20 12 13 1 46
Charge for the year (42) (28) (38) (3) (111)
Exchange adjustments 2 2 1 1] 5
Balance at 31 December 2009 {178} (180) {376) (21) (755)
Net book value at 31 December 2009 655 120 100 377 1,252

Leasehold improvements refate to premises occupied by the Group for its own activities
Included In the above as at 31 December 2010 1s€ 9 millon (2009 € 11 million) relating to assets under construction
The net hook value of finance leases includad in property plant and equipment as at 31 December 2010 was€ 18 million (2008 € 23 million)

Investment property

Investment property 1s carmed at cost less accumutated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Depreciation 13 calculated using the straight ine method over a
penod of 40-50 years The fair value of investment property as at 31 December 2010 wes € 484 million {2009 € 465 millon) The fair values are open-markst values
provided by professionally qualfied valuers

During the year ended 31 December 2010 an amount of € 28 millon (2009 € 28 million) was recognised as rental Income from investment property In income from non
banking services As at 31 December 2010 and 2008 there were no capital commitrnents in relation to investment property
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Intangible assets

o 31 Dbcembar2010 + ST

5 o

.7, Booawl

~ € million

Cost
Balance at 1 January 54 269 803 574 221 795
Ansing from acquisition of subsidianes - 0 0 - 0 0
Transfers - (0) {0} - 1 1
Additions - 56 66 - 51 51
Dispesals and wnte-offs - (0) ©) - {1 (1)
Exchange adjustments - 1) 1) - {3) (3)
Adjustment to goodwill {see below) 0 - 0 {40) - (40)
Balance at 31 December 534 324 858 534 269 803
Accumulated impairment/amortisation
Bealance at 1 January (1} (92) (93} (1) (83) (84)
Arsing from acquisition of subsidianes . {0} [{13] - ©) {0)
Transfers . 0 0 - 1) m
Amortisation charge for the year - {31) ) - (29) (29)
Disposals and write-offs - o 0 - 0 0
Exchange adjustments - {0) {0) - 1 1
Balance at 31 December (1) {123) (124) {1) (82) {93)
Mot book value at 31 December 533 201 734 533 177 710

Included i the above as at 31 December 2010 15€ 2 million (2009 € 1 million) refating to assets under constructon

Goodwill for 2009 was adjusted for contingent purchase consideraton and far value adjustments in accordance with the prowisions of the acquisition agreements for
Eurobank Telden A § (€ 41 million decreass) and Activa Insurance absorbed by EFG Eurolife General Insurance S A (€ 1 milion increase)

Goodwill for 2010 was adjusted for contingent purchase consideration and far value adjustments in accordance with the provisions of the acquisiion agreements for
Accents § A which was absorbed by Eurobank EFG Telesis Finance S A that merged with Eurobank EFG Equites S A (€ 1 § million decrease} and Eurobank EFG A D
Beograd (€ 1 8 million increase)

Impalrment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s allocated, at acquisiion to the cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit fram that business combination

and form part of the Group's pamary business segments The carrying amount of goodwill 18 allocated as follows
T TR RS o
“oe GEEENO) Fp R0
millioni | " 3 € milli
2

Global and Capntal Markets 3
Wealth Management 65 65
New Europe (NE) 466 465
Total goodwill 633 533

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2010, no impainment losses of the CGUs 1o which goodwill has been allocated, arose

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-use calculations The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the
discount rates, growth rates and cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by Management covenng a 5-year period Cash flow projections for years six to
ten have been projected based on operation and market specitfic assumptions Cash flows beyond the ten-year penod (the penod in perpetuity) have been extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated below Management estmates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect cument market assessments of the tme value of
money and the nsks specific to the CGUs The growth rates are based on respective market growth forecasts

[ alth Management and Global and Capital Ma) e ts
The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections 13 15% The growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the il ten-year penod 1s 2% and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets

(m) New Furcpe segment

The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for New Europe entities 18 12% for Bulgana 13% for Romania, 15% for Sertia, 16% for Eurobank Tekfen A S,
Turkey, 22% for EFG Istanbul Menkul Degerler A 5, Turkey and 22% for Ukraine The growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the inibal ten-year period 1s 3%
and does not exceed the average tong-term growth rate for the relevant markets
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256 Other assets

Prepaid expenses and accrued income

Deferred tax asset (note 12}

Repossessed properties

Recervable from Deposit Guarantee Fund

Income tax receivable

Setttement balances with customers

Investments In associated undertakings (see below)
Other assets

The movement In Investments in associated undertakings i3 as follows

Balance at 1 January

Additions/(disposals} of associated undertakings
Conversion of associated undertakings to subsidianes
Dividends collectad/{paid)

Cancellation of own shares/other items

Share of avarlable-for-sale revaluation reserve

Share of results for the year

Balance at 31 December

R 2009
= o @million

44
389
164
115

95

The financial information of the Group's assocrates and joint ventures as at 31 December 201015 presented below

- e *
wrgm, \.‘i ;ﬂ B, Nt 4@2
r;ega;%a*

3
Ly mifi*

Rt

;g_s_ ncorgoratlo o Qusmes
Unitfinance 8 A Greece Financing
company
BD Financial Limited Brtish Virgin  Financing
Islands camparry
Tefin S A Greece Motor vehicle
sales financing
Sinda Enterpnses a Cyprus Special purpose
Company Limited investment
vehicle
Cardink 3 A Greece POS
adminstration
Dias S A b Greece Closed-end
investment fund

Ags at 31 December 2010 the above companies are unlisted

o );w%rﬁ)@-" ;

“(‘ﬂ%“"' & Countg of “‘*z‘ “"*Line of “o*’ig Percen?zﬁgé

Halaing %7

]
. Share of Net: Profi
il J, SRR E o lods
~+=+ € million -€ mllhon«» *r-s_€rmiliont € wﬁ m IIi-:mt
19 34 2 1)
13 1] ] [+
T 1 4 o
5 4] 2 o
1 0 ] [+)
R - . 1
65 35 14 {0}

Tefin S A Cardlink S A Unitfinance S A and Sinda Enterpnises Company Limited are the Group's Joint ventures

(a) Sinda Enterprises Company Limited

Duning the year, the Bank together with Laskandes Group acquired through the joint venture “Sinda Enterpnses Company Limited”, 40% of the shares of "Mesogeos

S A" acompany active in the sector of water and waste management

(b) Dias S A

Fallowing the approval of the merger between Dias S A and the Bank by the companies' Board of Directors in November 2010, the Group obtamned control over
DIAS S A with the existing nominal shareholding percentage of 26 08% (nate 22)

26 Due to other banks

Iltems in course of coltectton and current accounts with banks
Deposits from other banks
Setlement balances with banks

In¢luded in the amounts due to other banks are amounts due to
- fellow subsidianes

27 Repurchase agreements with banks

Repurchase agreements with central banks
Repurchase agreaments with other banks
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. 2010 [ 7 7 2009
€ml]llgn} 4+ € million

81 28
1,056 1,925
8 305
1,144 2,258
1] 51

( -, 2010 {
* € million

72009
€ million

21,885 8 199
3,695 8,989
25,4380 17,188
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Due to customers

Ly £ ;t: 7% 2
¥ i miligh

Savings and current accounts 13,149 14 935
Term depossits and repurchase egreements 29,787 30,308
Unit Iinked products 6685 730
Qther term products 844 837
44,435 46,808
Included In the amounts due fo customers are amounts due to
- parent undertaking - Q
- fellow subsidiary and asseciate undertakings 13 43

The carrying amount of structured deposits and liabilbes of umitinked products classified as at fair value through profit or loss at 31 December 2010 18 € B47 milon {2009
€ 1,088 million) The fair value change as at 31 December 2010 amounts to € 10 million loss (2008 € 26 milhon loss), which 15 atinbutable to changes in market conditions

The changes in the fair value of structured deposits and liabilities of unit-linked products are offset in the iIncome statement against changes in the fair value of structured
dervatives and assets classified as at fair vatue through profit or loss, respectively

The difference between the carying amount and the contractual undiscounted amount that will be required to be paid at the matunty of the structured deposits 1s € 26
rmallion (2009 € 51 million}

Debt issued and other borrowed funds

Shont-term debt
- Commercial Paper (ECP) o 229
- Other Short-Term Notes o 53
[ 282

Long-term debt
- Medium-term notes (EMTN) 3,181 4,367
- Subordinated 495 460
- Secuntised 1,713 2,558
5,389 7,385
Total 5,389 7,667

There 15 an unrecognised valuation gain of € 916 milion (2009 € 805 million) related to long term debt of € 5,071 milion (2009 € 7,086 milon) camed at amortised cost,
whereas Its fair value 1s € 4,155 million (2009 € 6,291 million) The remaming iong term debt consists of structured notes classified as at fair-value-through-profit-or-loss,
whose carrying amount as at 31 December 2010 amounted to € 318 mitlon (2009 € 289 milion) The fair value change as at 31 December 2010 amounis to € 247 milion
gain (2009 € 213 milion gain) The fair value of the structured notes takes into account the credit nsk of the Group The cumulatve change in fair value of these
Instruments atinbutable to changes in credit nsk as at 31 December 2010 was a gain of € 244 million (2009 € 171 million gan) out of which € 73 mikion have been
recorded in net trading income (2008 € 11 millien) The changes in the farr value of the structured notes due to market nsks other than the Group's credit nsk are offset in
the iIncome statement against changes in the fair value of structured derivatives

The difference between the carrying amount and the contractual undiscounted amount that will be required to be paid at the matunty of the structured notes 1s € 250 milion
(2009 € 209 milion)

The EMTNs held by Group's customers which, as at 31 December 2010 amounted to€ 844 million (2009 € 837 million) are included in *Due to customers”
The Group's funding consists of the secuntisations of vanous classes of loans and notes under Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) program
Asset Backed Securities

(a) Residential Mortgage Backed Secunties (RMBS)

In June 2004 the Group proceeded with the 1ssuance of residential mortgage backed secuntes at an average funding cost of three month Eunbor plus 19 basis points for
seven years As at 31 December 2010 the liability amounted to€ 52 million (2008 & 71 millon)

in June 2005, the Group proceeded with the issuance of residential mortgage backed secunties at an average funding cost of three month Eunbor plus 17 5 basis points
for seven years As at 31 December 2010 the liability amounted to€ 105 million (2009 € 127 muthion)

In June 2008, the Group proceeded with the 1ssuance of residential mortgage backed secunties at an average funding cost of three month Eunbor plus 16 basis points for
seven years As at 31 December 2010 the liability amounted to€ 185 million (2009 € 219 milion)}

In June 2007 the Group proceeded with the 1ssuance of residential mortgage backed secunties at an average funding cost of three month Eunbor plus 13 basis paints for
five years Dunng the year, the Group has gradually proceeded with the partial repayment of residential mortgage backed secunties amounting to € 124 milion As at 31
December 2010 the liabiify amounted to€ 587 million {2009 € 787 million)

{b) Credit Card Asset Backed Securities
During the year, credit card asset backed secunties amounting to€ 550 million 1ssued by the Group's spacial purpose enbty Karta 2005-1 Plc in July 2005 matured
(c) Small Business Loan Assot Backed Securitios

In October 2006, the Group proceeded with the 1ssuance of small business loan asset backed secunties at an average funding cost of three month Eunbor plus 17 basis
points for class A notes As at 31 December 2010 tha liability amounted to€ 774 million (2009 € 804 mallion)
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Deobt Issued and other horrowed funds {continued)

Lower Tier-il

In May 2005 the Group issued ¥ 30 billion {equivalent fo € 276 million) unsecured subordinated fixed rate notes denominated in JPY through its subsidiary EFG Hellas Plc
The notes have a thirty year maturity with a call provision after ten years The notes pay fixed rate interast on a semester basis on a coupon of 2 76% per annum The notes
quality s Lower Tier-Il capital for the Group and are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange In October 2005 the Group 1ssued ¥ 4 billion (equevalent to € 37 mdhion)
unsecured subordinated fixed rate notes through its subsidiary EFG Hellas Plc which are consolidated and form a single senes with the existing Lower Tier-Il of € 276
million tssued in May 2005 As at 31 December 2010 the hability amounted to€ 124 million (2008 € 83 million)

1n June 2007 the Group issued € 750 million unsecured subordinated floating rate notes, through its subsidiary EFG Hellas PLC The notes have a ten year matunty with a
call provision after five years The notes pay floating rate interest quarterly based on a coupon of three month Eunbor plus 30 basis points for the first fiva years The notes
qualify as Lower Tier | capital for the Group and are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange As at 31 December 2010 the liability amounted to € 371 million (2009 €
377 million)

The notes held by Group s customers, which as at 31 December 2010 amounted to € 180 million are included 1n “Due to customers” (2009 € 177 million)

Medium-term notes (EMTN)
Dunng the penod, notes amounting to € 743 mallion, ssued under the EMTN Program through the Group's special purpose entities matured

Covared bonds and Governmant guaranteed bonds

Dunng the year, the Bank has 1ssued € 3,750 million covered bonds and € 12,050 million bonds under the second stream aof the Greek Economy Liquidity Support Program
{note 43} As at 31 December 2019, the bonds were fully retained by the Bank

Post balance sheet gvent

In March 2011, the Bank ssued an additional amount of government guaranteed bonds of€ 1,650 milicn, which were fully retained by the Bank (note 43}
Financial disclosures required by the Act 2620/28 08 2008 of the Bank of Greece m relation to the covered bonds issued, are available at the Bank's website

Other liabllities

s Ty
T A [

~4€ million

Insurance lrabilites 972 749
Acquisition obligations 128 119
Defarrad income and accrued expenses 119 109
Standard legal staff retrement indemmity obligations {nots 31) 75 83
Trading habilities 58 25
Deferred tax liabilities (note 12) 16 14
Settlament balances with customers 16 30
Other labilities 581 831

1,966 1760

Standard legal staff retirement indemnity obligations

Movement [n the liability for standard legal staff retirement indemnity obligations

Liabilty for staff retirement indemnity obligations at 1 January 83 81
Ansing from acquisitons 0 4]
Cost for the year (see below) 15 13
Benefits paid {23} {9}
Exchange and other adjustments 0 {2}
Liabilsty for staff retrement mdemnity obligations at 31 Decembe: 75 83

Expense recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost 6 6
Interest cost 4 4
Additional cost 14 4
Actuanal (gainsVlosses {8) {1)
Total included 1 staff costs (note 10) 15 13
Actuarial assumptions

Pnncipal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) [ % [ %]
Discount rate 54 57
Future salary increases 3z 31
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Crdinary share capital, share premium and treasury shares

The par value of the Bank's shares 1s € 2 75 per share All shares are fully paxd The movement of share capital, share premium and treasury shares s as follows

AOrdmary Ve R;(*.\i’w*\"ﬁﬁ u RN

: gﬂé P‘i},%.’ \Fe ‘bs

o3 share .- easy bl g v are. g
a. S l@ s
€ millign Ili > HE

At 1 January 2009 1,451 73) 1378 1455 (355} 1100
Distnbution of free shares to Junior level staff 2 - 2 5 - 5

Issue of preference shares, expenses - - - (10} - {10)
Share capital increase due to the distnbution of dvidends

in the form of free shares 28 - 28 - - -
Purchase of treasury shares - {1} Q)] - {3) {3)
Sale of treasury shares - 73 73 - 349 349

At 31 December 2009 1481 (1) 1480 1450 {9} 1441

At 1 January 2010 1,481 (1) 1,480 1,460 19) 1,441

Ansing from acquisitions'" . @ (2 . " )
Purchase of treasury shares - {1) (1) - (0) {3)
Sale of treasury shares - 1 1 - 0 o

At 31 December 2010 1,481 (3) 1,478 1,450 {10} 1,430

The following 1s an analysis of the movement in the number of shares 1ssued by the Bank

[ xtve o o Nurhber ofshm
4fbe i '#'Treasu shafeai}ﬁ%-
w} fj (R undempemal

_lssued * - Fscheme v £

;,_
"W"

At 1 January 2009 527 591 242 (26,011,770} {436,550) 501 142 922
Distnbution of free shares to junior level staff 772,330 - - 772,330
Share capital increase due to the distribution of dividends

in the form of free shares 10,231,383 - - 10,231,383
Purchase of treasury shares - {241,718) (325 410) (567,129)
Sale of reasury shareg - 26,253,489 167,537 26 421,026
At 31 December 2009 538 594 955 - (594,4& 538,000,5‘3_2_.
At 1 January 2010 538,694,965 - (694,423) 538,000,532
Anising from acquisitions'" - - {490,000) {490,000)
Purchase of treasury shares - - (277,186) {277,186)
Sale of treasury shares - - 341,040 341,040
At 31 December 2010 538,594,955 - (1,020,569) 537,674,186

in June 2008, the Annual General Meetng approved the issue, within certain parameters, the terms and timing of which are at the Board of Directors discreton asther in
lump sum or gradually in ranches of a callable bond of up to€ 500 million convertible to ordinary shares of the Bank (note 34, Senes D and E)

Post balance sheet event
Following the merger of the Bank and Dias S A (note 22), the Bank's share capital will amount to € 1,554 million dvided Into 552,948,427 ordinary voting shares of a

nominal value of € 2 81 each
Treasury shares
a Treasury shares under special scheme

As resolved by the Annual General Meeting in Apnl 2008 the Bank established a special scheme, for the acquisition of up to 5% of the Bank's shares under Article 16 of
Company Law to optmise on a medium and long term basis the Group's equity profits per share, dividends per share and capital adequacy ratos as well as foruse in a
possible acquisibon According to the Law 3756/2009, banks participating in the Government's Greek Economy Liquidity Support Program are not allowed to acquire
treasury shares under article 16 of the Company Law The program expired in Apnl 2010

b Other treasury shares
In the ordinary course of business subsidiaries of the Group may acquire and dispose of treasury shares, the majonty relates to Iife insurance actity

("reasury shares ansing from Dias S A acquisition will be cancelled upon completion of the merger agreement between the Bank and Dias S A (note 22)
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Preforence shares

AR PrefoT 6 e a1 S Ao o R P e et
[ o Nimuek ol ' :
< isharests X" wh&miliiony
345,500,000 8950
At 31 Docember 345,500,000 950 350

On 12 January 2009 the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Bank approved the issue of 345,500 000 non-voting non-listed, non-transferable tax deductible non-
cumulative 10% preference shares, with nominal vatue € 2 75 each under Law 3723/2008 “Gresk Economy Liquidity Suppoert Program®, to be fully subscnbed to and paid
by the Greek State with bonds of equivalent value The proceeds of the issue total € 940 million, net of expenses, and the transaction was completed on 21 May 2009 In
accordance with the current legal and regulatory framework, the issued shares have been classified as Tier 1 capital

The preference shares pay @& non-cumulative coupon of 10%, subject to meetng mimum capital adequacy requuements, set by Bank of Greece avalability of
distnbutable reserves in accordance with article 44a of Company Law 2180/1920 and the approval of the Annual General Meeting According to article 39 of Law
3844/2010 five years after the 1ssue of the preference shares or earlier subject to the approval of the Bank of Greece the Bank may redeem the preference shares at therr
nominal value |n case of non redemption at the expiration of the five year penod, the coupon 18 Increased by 2% each year

In June 2010, tha Annual General Mesting approved the distibution of dvidend amounting to€ 58 milion attnbutable to preference shares for 2009
As at 31 December 2010, the dividend attributable 1o preference shares amounted to€ 85 mullion (2009 € 59 million)

Proferred securities

On 18 March 2005, the Group, through its Special Purpose Entity EFG Hellas Funding Limited 1ssued € 200 milion preferred secunties which represent Lower Tier 1
capital for the Group The preferred secunties have no fixed redemption date and give the 1ssuer the right to call the 1ssue at par on 18 March 2010 and annually thereafter
All obligations of the 1ssuer in respect of the preferred secunties are guaranteed on a subordinated basis by the Bank The secunties pay fixed noncumulatve annual
dividend of 8 75% for the first two years and non-cumulatve annual dividends that are determined based on the ten year Euro swap rate plus a spread of 0 125% capped at
8% thereafter The rate of preferred dividends for the Tier 1 Issue senes A has been determined to 3 48% for the penod March 18, 2010 to March 17 2011 The preferred
dividend must be declared and paid if the Bank declares a dividend The preferred secunties are Iisted on the Luxembourg and Frankfurt Stock Exchanges

©On 2 November 2005, the Group through its Special Purpose Entity, EFG Hellas Funding Limited, 1ssued € 400 million preferred secunties which represent Lower Tier 1
capital for the Group The preferred securites have no fixed redemption date and give the issuer the nght to call the issue at par on 2 November 2015 and quarterly
thereafter All obligations of the issuer In respect of the preferred secuntes are guaranteed on a subordinated basis by the Bank The secuntes pay fixed non-cumutative
annual dvidend of 4 57% for the first ten years and non-cumulative annual dividends that are determined based on the 3month Eunbor plus a spread of 2 22% thereafter
The preferred dividend must be declared and paid if the Bank declares dvdend The preferred secunties are listed on the London Stock Exchange

On 9 November 2005 the Group, through its Special Purpose Entity, EFG Hellas Funding Limited, 1ssued € 150 milion preferred secunties which represent Lower Tier 1
capital for the Group The preferred secunties have no fixed redemption date and give the issuer the nght to call the 1ssue atparon 9 January 2011 and quarterly thereafte:
Al obligations of the r1ssuer in respect of the preferred secunbes are guaranteed on a subordinated basis by the Bank The secunties pay fixed non-cumulative dividend on
a quartery basis at a rate of 6% per annum The prefermed dividend must be declared and pawd if the Bank declares a dividend The preferred secunties arae listed on the
London, Frankfurt and Euronext Amsterdam Stock Exchanges

On 21 December 2005 the Group, through Its Spectal Purpose Entity, EFG Hellas Funding Limited, 1ssued € 50 million prefemred securiies which are consolidated and
form a single senes with the existing € 150 million preferred secunties issued on 9 November 2005

On 29 July 2009, the Group through its Special Purpose Entity, EFG Hellas Funding Limited 1ssued € 300 miilion preferred secuntes which represent Tier 1 capital for the
Group This 15 1n accordance with the decision of the Annual General Meeting on 30 June 2009 which allows the Bank to issue in tranches up to € 500 million of such
secunties The preferred secunties have no fixed redemption date and give the issuer the nght to call the issue aiter five years from the 1ssue date and quarterly thereafter
In addition the secunties subjact to certain conditions are convertible at the option of the bondhclder and the issuer after October 2014 into Eurobank EFG ordinary shares
at a 12% discount to the share market price dunng the period preceding the exchange All obligations of the issuer in respect of the preferred securites are guaranteed on
a subordinated basis by the Bank The secunties pay fixed non-cumulatve dividend on a quarterly basts at a rate of 8 25% per annum The prefemred dvidend must be
declared and paid if tha Bank declares a dividend The preferred securities are hsted on the London Stock Exchange

On 30 November 2009 the Group, through its Special Purpose Entty EFG Hellas Funding Limited, 1ssued € 100 million preferred secunties which represent Tiar 1 capital
for the Group The terms and conditions of the ssue are similar to preferred secunties issued on 29 July 2009 and the conversion option apphes from February 2015 The
preferrad secunyes are listed on the London Stock Exchange

The movement of preferred secunties 1ssued by the Group through sts Special Purpose Entity, EFG Hellas Funding Limited, 15 as follows

Series C w«r  Serieg D '+ © rh-Safles G- ue
i !nﬁ"

Saries A 7 * SerlesB

€ mithion € million Emillien __ F " Emiion™ % e millig
At 1 January 2010 94 176 173 292 56 791
Purchase of preferred secunties {0) {6) {2) {83) (3} (94)
Sale of preferred secunties 3 5 2 78 6 94
At 31 Decamber 2010 97 175 173 287 59 791

As at 31 December 2010, the dividend attributable to preferred secunties holders amounts to€ 51 million (2009 € 36 million}
As at 31 December 2010, thers wers no gains/(losses) on preferred secunties (2009 € 173 million gains)

Page 41 31 December 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements




EFG EUROBANK ERGASIAS S A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements @ Eurobank EFG

35

36

Share options

The Group has granted share options to executive drectors, management and employees All oplions are equity-setiled and may be exercised wholly or partly and
converted into shares, at their owners' eption provided that ths vesting requirements are met

In April 2008, the Annual General Meeting approved the establishment of an umbrella share options programme allowing the Board of Directors (through the Board's
Remuneratien Committee) to issue share options within the next 5 years {1 & untl the Annual General Meeting of the year 2011) totalling up to 3% of the Bank's shares
within the defined framework similar to the share options issued in the past The Repeat Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meatng on 21 November 2007 amended the
terms of the pregram so that the vesting penod and exercise dates may be determined at the discretion of the Board following recommendation by the Remuneration
Committee

The movement in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average exercisa pnces are as follows

" aro;H Pm g harei R
At 1 January 1166 5,485,110 1177 5622 482
Adjustment for corporate actions - - 1156 111,740
Expired and cancelled 1120 (315,981) 1127 {249 112)
Balance at 31 Dacember and average exercise price per ghare 1167 5,169,129 1155 5,485,110

Share options outstanding and exercisable at the end of year have the followtng expiry dates and exercise pnces

[ i¥ed 3lzDocember 20104, 1,1 |
E:!'? "s"‘oﬂ?ﬂ"c‘wmher of
E n€p

Expiry date - 31 December ‘pel .share~ ,é’hara oﬁons peLshare, hargsoplions;
2011 00 421,897 12 00 421,897
2012 12 00 1,343,722 1200 1407 074
2013 1168 1,337,700 13 58 1412 689
2014 990 2,065,810 990 2,243 450

11 87 5,169,129 11 55 5,485,110

Special reserves

? Stap;}ory’
E fg;g?m&a}
~E mitlign
Balance at 1 January 2009 283 922
Transfers between reserves 47 189
Avallable-for-sale secunties
- netchanges in far value net of tax - - 102 - 102
- transfer to net profit net of tax - - (48} - (48}
Cash flow hedges
- net changes in fair value net of tax - - (14) - (14)
- transfer to net profit net of tax - - (11} - {11)
Currency translation differences net of hedging - - - (54) (54}
Value of employee services - - - 13 13
At 31 December 2009 335 1111 (505) {263) 678
Balance at 1 January 2010 336 1,111 (505} (263) 678
Transfers between reserves 58 131 - (2) 187
Availlable-for-sale secunties
- net changes in fair value net of tax - - {193} . {193)
- transfer to net profit net of tax - - 43 - 48
Cash flow hedges
- net changes in far value net of tax - - (81) - {51)
- transfer to net profit net of tax - - (2) - (2)
Currency translation differences, net of hedging - - - 27) {27)
Value of employee services - - - 4 4
At 31 December 2010 393 1,242 (703) (288) 644

Statutory reserves and IAS 39 reserves are not distnbutable Included in 1AS 39 reserves as at 31 Decemnber 2010 1s € 85 millon loss (2009 € 32 million loss) relating to
cash flow hedging reserve

Non-taxed reserves are taxed when distributed As at 31 December 2010, non-taxed reserves include an amount of € 246 million which consists of € 289 million which
following Law 3513/2006 were subject to one-off taxation amounting to € 43 3 millien The Bank has contested the above taxaton in the courts

Included In other reserves as at 31 Decermber 2010 18€ 255 million loss (2009 € 228 million loss) relating to currency transiation reserve, net of hedging
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Operating leasas

Leases as |lessee - Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

. +31 December 2010 .irovd | »,ﬁssi'aece
wt v aaland., i “f‘"Furnlture, i ¥ald .
‘; 3 an 1; oqmpment,
i,’* : a s,.'ﬁ V&El‘ ! Mjuiij .'lln ;
'!<€mlllonq'§5’ iinl f T P T
Not Jater than one year 50 2 68 2
Later than one year and no later than five years 62 3 €3 1
Later than fve years 10 0 17 -
122 5 148 3

The total of future minimum sublease payments to be receved under non-cancellable subleases at the balance sheet date 15€ 27 milion (2009 € 8 milfion)

Leases as lessor - Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are receivable as follows

Not later than one year
Later than one year and no [ater than five years
Later than five years

Contingent liabilities and other commitments

e 2010

€ rnillnon

Guarantees and standby letters of credit 974
Other guarantees and commitments to extend credit 1,895
Documentary credits 166
Capital expenditure 9
2,743

Included above Is a guarantee that the Bank 1ssued tn favour of EFG Ora Funding Limited JIl amaunting to € 271 million {2009 € 271 milien] against which the ultimate
parent company of the Group has guaranteed unconditionally and without the nght of cancellation

Lagal Proceeadings

There were a number of legal proceedings outstanding against the Group as at the year end The Group's management and s legal adwvisors believe that the outcome of
the exising lawsuits will nat have a signficant impact on the Group’s financial statements

Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the intemal reports reviewed by the Strategic Planning Group {SPG) that are used to allocate resources
and to assess ds performance in order to make strategic decisions The SPG considers the business both from 2 business unt and gecgraphic perspectve
Geographically, management considers the performance of its business in Greece and other countnes in Europe (New Europe} Greece s further segregated into retail
wholesale, wealth management, and globat and capital markets while New Europe 1s monitored and reviewed on a country basis The Group aggregates segments when
they exhibit similar econoruc charactenstics and profile and are expected to have similar long-term economic development

With the exception of Greece no other individual country contnbuted more than 10% of consolidated income The Group 1s organized in the following reportable segments

. Retall incorporating customer cumrent accounts, savings, deposits and investment savings products, credit and debit cards, consumer loans, small business
banking and mortgages
L] Corporate Incarporating direct debit faciities, current accounts, deposits, overdrafts loan and other credit facilites foreign currency and dervative products to

corporaie entities

. Weazlth Management incorporating private banking senaces including total wealth management, to medium and high net worth mdmiduals, insurance, mutual
fund and investment savings products and institutional asset management

L4 Global and Capital Markets incorporating investment bankmg services Including corporate finance, merger and acquisibons advice custody, equity brokerage,
financial instruments trading and institutional finance fo corporate and Institutional entties as well as, specialised financial advice and intermediation to pnvate
and large retail individuals as well as small and large corporate entibes

L New Europe - incorparating operations in Poland, Romania Bulgana, Serbia, Cyprus, the Ukraine and Turkey
Other operations of the Group compnse mainly of iInvesting activites, including property management and investment and the management of unallocated capital

The Group's management reporting 1s based on IFRS The accounting policies of the Group's operatng segments are the same with those described in the prncipal
accounting policies

Revenues from transactions between buginess segments are allocated on a mutually agreed basis at rates that approximate market prices
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Sagment information {continued)

Operating sagments

h L - 31 December 2010 .+ & . &+ _smw*¥&, F W«g@ﬁ,;ﬁm
. - Global 837, o Ta e U y e
Tl w o a g e L LV, ¥
ﬁ%xi?ﬁ“:" ¥ ME T?* B ;‘;Wealthw z:u-z.Ca«p"ita': [ r& %

“esRetall « «~Corporale Managoment - 4 btsm .Hv\i gﬁ, y he
€m|ll|on v s mnllloni’ LY €§milllonw ”ﬁlion:sg ' I ‘m € mIIl

*

Net interest Income 1,091 469 4 16 (51}

Net commission income 59 61 48 61 2

Other net revenue 27 (20} 45 70 99

Total external revenue 1,177 810 a7 147 &0

Inter-segment revenue 104 3 (32} {44) 15

Tetal revenue 1,281 513 65 103 65 941 (44) 2,924

Operating expenses {507) (113) (69} {77 (78) (626} 44 (1,426)

Imparment losses on

loans and advances {909) {93} (1} (0) {0} {359) - {1,362)

Profit before tax

atinbutable to

shareholders (136) 306 (6} 26 {29) {45} 0 117

Segment assets 24,184 18,122 2,101 15,324 5,168 22,299 - 87,188
35" e e o T il b iq‘;gl Bl o

* "“"v.(w;‘.’.?@‘ ey m.’\ Jl‘.u“k P ;,a-&,i.a‘l ¥
1;3 -y \njﬁm-,,.“:f A
- - o Ao

Pl j'i-‘f,r- ik ealthv";rﬁ\"

- 4 3Retal rporate?‘z » Management,
calian X
€ m|ll|on €-m§] on e fg mﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁv 'fti,

Net interest income 1111 422 {1) - 23
Net commission iIncome 54 52 48 105 - 418
Qther net revenue 11 2 60 49 - 282
Total external revenue 1176 476 107 212 - 3,041
Inter-segment revenue B8 20 (29} (42) (46) -
Total revenue 1,264 496 78 170 (46) 3041
Operating expenses (557) (120) (61) (70) 46 (1471)
Impairment losses on
loans and advances (671} {51) {1} (2) - (452) - {1177}
Profit before tax
aftnbutable to
shareholders 35 325 16 98 51 {140) - 385
Segrent assets 24 906 16,937 1,473 14 359 5119 21475 - 84 269

Entity wide disclosures

{a} Anatysis of revenue by category
Breakdown of the Group's revenue for each group of similar products and senvices 1s as follows

&,, 2010 L 322000
S*ﬁmo 2HE € illiGn

Lending related actwities 2,775 2674
Deposits network and asset management actvisies (288) (129)
Capital markets 358 398
Insurance related activities 7 48
Non banking and other services 42 52
2,924 3,041

{b) Geographical inforrmation

The following table breaks down the Group's total revenues and total assets based on the country in which the Group s operation 1s located

31 Docember 20107, " | Wﬁeﬁ%’%ﬁmﬁﬂ
X e 4«:— :nr‘ PO ;
Reverluas 5
€ mllllgn € e
Greece 1,984 64,889 2,095 82794
Remania 306 5,366 305 5615
Poland 189 5,693 167 5,357
Bulgana 17 3,611 193 3911
Other countries 275 7,640 281 6 592
2,924 87,188 3,041 84 269
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Post balance sheet events

In February 2011 the Group entered into an investment agreement to form a strategic partnership with Rarffeisen Bank International AG ("RBI™) n relation to their Polish
operations The terms of the transacton envisage RBI acquinng 70% of Polbank EFG for an upfront cash consideration of € 490 mullton, following the incorporation of the
Bank's branch operations in Poland as a separate bank Subsequently, the Group and RBI shall bring together their Polish banlung operations, with RBI controlling 87%
and the Group retaining a 13% stake in the to-be-combimed entity The closing of the transaction, expected for the fourth quarter of 2011 15 subject to the completion of the
incorporation of Polbank EFG and subsequent customary regulatory approvals This inibative will improve Capital Adeguacy ratio by 125 bps release approximately € 2 bn
of iqudity, generate profitability and mamntain a meaningful upside in the Polish banking market

Details of significant post balance sheet events are also provided in the following notes

Note 11-Income tax expense

Note 22-Shares in subsidiary undertakings

Note 29-Debt issued and other borrowed funds

Note 32-Ordinary share capial, share premium and treasury shares
Note 43-Greek Economy Liquidity Support Program

Acquisition of subsidlaries
Acquisition of Dias 8 A

As a result of obtaning control over Dias S A, 1n accordance with the revised IFRS 3, the Group recognised losses of € 13 million from remeasunng rts previously held
Interest te fair value and € 6 million from recycling to the income statement its share of losses of Dias S A avalable-for-sale portfolio that was previously recognised in
other comprehensive income

The fair valua of total assets acquired was € 116 millon less total labilites having a fair value of € 2 milhon The farr value of the previously held interest in Dias SA and
the fawr value of the non-controlling interest was determined by reference to the market pnce of Dias S A shares traded in Athens Stock Exchange Included in other
operating 1ncome s an amount of € 20 million attributed to the resulting negative goodwill The negative goodwill was due to the discount at which Dias S A shares are
traded in the Athens Stock Exchange relatively to the company's net asset value

The acquired company contributed revenue of € 2 2 million and a net gam of € 0 7 million to the Group dunng the penod from the date of its acquisition to 31 Decermber
2010 Dunng the pencd from 1 January 2010 unil the date of its acquisition Dias S A contributed to the Group as an associate a net gain of € 07 million If the acquisiton
had occured on 1 January 2010, the acquired company would have contnbuted revenue of € 6 8 million and an addiional net gain of € 0 § million

Included i the € 116 million of fair value of total assets acqured are € 31 mullion of cash and cash equivalents, with the remaining balance representing financial assets

Acquisition related costs amounted to €0 1 million

Changes in participating interests of subsidiary underiakings that have been recogrised directly in equity include Bancpost S A, BDD EFG Secunties ad Beograd, IMO-I
Property Investments S A , IMO Property Investments Bucurest S A and Dias § A

The initial accounting for the business combinations that were effected dunng the year is presented provisionally since the determination of the subsidianies’ identfiable
assets, iabiites or contingent labilities, or the cost of the combinations has not been yet finalised

Adjustments to the provisional values of previous year acquisitions

With respect to the acquisition of Eurobank EFG A D Beograd, effected and presented provisionally in 2008 total goodwil has increased by € 1 8 million as a result of
adjustments related to the exercise of the call option, that increased total acquisiton cost accordingly

With respect to the acquisiton of Accentis S A , which was absorbed by Eurcbank EFG Telesis Finance S A in 2007, that merged with Eurobank EFG Equities S A in May
2010, total Goodwill has decreased by€ 1 5 mdlion as a result of the settlement of a contingent consideration hability

Stress test for the European Banks

The uncertainties created by the sovereign debt 1ssues in most EU countnes raised significant concems regarding the stabildty of the European banking system Te address
this the Committes of Eurcpean Banking Supervisors (CEBS) in co-cperation with European Central Bank and European Union authonties carred out stress tests of the
systemically important banks in the European Union simulating a scenano of extreme macroeconemic detenoration over the next two years

Eurobank EFG as well as the majonty of the banks tested, registered comfortable capstal levels even under the extreme and highly improbable scenano, with Tier 1 at the
end of 2011 at B 17%, significantly higher than the rmirimum required for the purpose of the stress test of 6%

Greek Economy Ligquidity Suppert Pregram
The Bank participates n the Greek Govemments plan to support hquidity in the Greek economy under Law 3723/2008 as extended by Laws 3844/Apnl 2010, 3845/May
2010 and 3872/September 2010, as follows

(a) First stream - preference shares

345 500 000 non-voting preference shares with narminal value of€ 950 million were subscribed to by the Hellenic Republic on 21 May 2008 (note 33)
() Second stream - bonds guaranteed by the Hellenic Republic

Ounng the year the Bank has 1ssued bonds of € 12 050 million As at 31 December 2010, the bonds were fully retained by the Bank (note 29)

In March 2011, an addiional amount of government guaranteed bonds of€ 1,550 milign was issued by the Bank {note 28)

{¢) Third stream - lending of Greek Govamment bonds

Liguidity obtained under this stream must be used to fund mortgages and loans o small and medium-size enterpnses As at 31 December 2010, the Bank had
borrowed special Greek Government bonds of € 1 737 milion

According to the third review repoart of the International Monetary Fund (28 February 2011) for the progress of the Economic Adjustment Program in Greece, endorsed by
the Mwnistry of Finance and the Bank of Greece, the Greek Government will undertake Initatives to preserve sufficient system liquidity, including a new tranche of
povernment guarantees for uncoverad bank bends in the amount of € 30 bn, and the Bank of Greece will ask banks to devise and implement medium-term funding plans
envisioning the gradual reduchon on ECB dependence

According to Law 3723/2008, for the period the Bank participates in the program through the preference shares or the guaranteed bonds (streams (a) and (b) abovey, the
Government is entilled to appoint its representative to the Board of Directors, veto divdend distnbutions and restnct management remuneration

tn addiion according to Law 3756/2008, as extended by article 39 of Law 3844/2010, banks participating in the Greek Economy Liguidity Support Program were not
allowed to declare a cash dividend to their ordinary shareholders far 2008 and 2009 and were not allowed to acqure treasury shares under article 16 of the Company Law
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44 Related party transactions

The Bank 1s 8 member of the worldwide EFG Group, which consists of creditinstitutions financial services and financial holding companies The operating parent company
of the EFG Group 1s European Financial Graup EFG (Luxembourg) S A, whilst s ultmate parent company 13 Pnvate Financial Holdings Limited {(PFH), which 1s owned
and controlled indirectly by members of the Latsis family As a1 31 December 2010, the EFG Group held 44 8% of the ordinary shares and voting nghts of the Bank through
wholly owned subsidiaries of the ulimata parent company, the remaining ordinary shares and voting rights being held by mstitutional and retail investors none of which, to
the knowledge of the Bank, holds 5% or more

The Bank's annual consolidated financia! statements are fully consolidated in the annual consolidated financiat statements of European Financal Group EFG
(Luxembourg) S A

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the nommal course of business and are conducted on an arm's length basis These include loans,
deposits and guarantees In addition as part of its nermal course of business in nvestment banking activities, the Group at tmes may hold positons in debt and equity
instruments of related parties The volume of related party transactions and outstanding balances at the year-end are as follows

Fe L TR Do coMbEr2 01 0k
: W

Loans and advances to banks 2 - - 0 - -
Financial Instrurnents at fair value through profit or loss - - - 2 - -
Investment secunties 82 - 10 83 - 19
Loans and advances to customers 64 19 121 32 20 235
Other assets 1 [} 0 ¢ - ]
Due to other banks 1] . - 51 -
Due to customers 1 53 239 18 72 239
Other liabihties 4 1 0 3 1 1
Net interest income 1 n 0 (2) 1 (@
Net banking fee and commussion iIncome (4) - 2 (3) - 5
Other operating income/{expense) 1 L+] {2) (0) - ¢
Guarantees 1ssued 2mM 1 1 271 1 1
Guarantees recerved m 0 56 271 74 -

Key management compensation {Including directors}
Key management personnel includes directors and key management personnel of the Group and its parent and theur close family members

No provisions have been recognised In respect of loans given to related parties (2009 nil)

Key management personnel are enttied to compensation in the form of short-term employee benefits € 7 5 mithon (2009 €7 8 millon) and long-term employee benefits €
2 6 million out of which € 2 1 milion are share-based payments (2009 €3 1 million and € 2 7 milion respectively)

Board of Directors

The three year term of the Board of Directors expired at the Annual General Meeting on 25 June 2010 The General Meeting appointed a new Board on 25 June 2010
whosa three year term expires at the Annual General Meeting which will take place in 2013

Other than as noted below, Directors served throughout 2009 and 2010

E N Christodoulou

Chairman {non executive-appointed as of 25 June 2010;

X C Nickitas Chairman {untl 25 June 2010)

G C Gondicas Honorary Chaiman (non executive)

A ML J Latsis Vice Chairman (non executive)

LD Efraimoglou Vice Chaimman {non executive-until 25 June 2010}

N C Nanopoulos Chief Executive Officer

B N Ballis Deputy Chief Executive Officer

N V Karamouzis Deputy Chief Executive Officer

M H Colakides Deputy Chief Executive Officer

N K Paviidis Executive

F S Antonatos Non Executive

A G Bibas Non Executive {untl 25 June 2010)

E L Busseti Non Executive

S J Latsis Non Executive

P P Petalas Non Executive

D A Georgoutsos Non Executive (appointed as of 18 June 2010 under Law 3723/2008)

DN Damianos Non Executive (appointed as af 16 March 2009 until 18 June 2010 under Law 3723/2008)

S L Lorentziadis Independent Non Executive

A J Martinos Non Executrve (appointed as of 25 June 2010-designated as Independent Non Executive by EGM en 10 January 2011)
D A Papatexopoulos Non Executive (appointed as of 25 June 2010-designated as Independent Non Executive by EGM on 10 January 2011)
P V Tndimas Independent Non Executive
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46 Dividends

Fina! drvidends are not accounted for untd they have been ratified by the Annual General Meeting In June 2010, the Annual General Mesting approved the distinbution of
dividend amounted to € 59 milion attributable to preference shares for 2008 (note 33)

According to Law 3756/2008, as extended by article 39 of Law 3844/2010, banks participating in the Greek Economy Liguidity Support Program were not allowed to declare
a cash dmvidend to therr ordinary shareholders for 2008 and 2009 In the context of current economic conditons the Directors do not consider that the distnbution of a
drvidend for 2010 would be appropnate

Athens, 22 March 2011

Efthymios N Christodoulou Nicholas C Nanopoulos Pauta N Hadjisetirou Harris V Kokologlannis
1D No AB - 048358 I D No AE - 586794 | D NoT-005040 tD No AK - 021124
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER HEAD OF GROUP FINANCE & CONTROL
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